


   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Agenda Amended 
October 29, 2019 
Page 2 

 

F.  Commissioner Reports  
 
F1. Housing Commission report 
 
G.  Consent Calendar  
 
G1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for September 24 and October 1, 2019 (Attachment) 
 
G2. Approve the purchase of property located at 1283 Willow Road from MP1283 Willow LLC for 

$3,633,000and approve use agreement to permit MidPen Housing to use property for construction 
staging (Staff Report #19-225-CC) 

 
G3. Receive and file the investment portfolio review as of September 30, 2019                                    

(Staff Report #19-220-CC) 
 
G4. Receive and file the quarterly financial review of general fund operations as of September 30, 2019 

(Staff Report #19-219-CC) 
 
G5. Approve the permanent neighborhood traffic management plan for North Lemon Avenue between 

Valparaiso Avenue and Santa Cruz Avenue (Staff Report #19-222-CC) 
 
G6. Receive and file West Bay Sanitary District’s Bayfront recycled water facilities plan and delegate 

authority to the city manager to negotiate an agreement for recycled water purveyorship options 
(Staff Report #19-217-CC) 

 
H. Regular Business  
 
H1. Introduction of Ordinance No. 1060 amending Chapter 13.24 [Heritage Trees] of Title 13 [Streets, 

sidewalks and utilities]and repealing Chapter 16.65 [Solar Access] of Title 16 [Zoning]                         
(Staff Report #19-223-CC) 

 
I. Informational Items  
 
I1. City Council agenda topics: November 2019 to January 2020 (Staff Report #19-216-CC) 
 
I2. Downtown street café program update (Staff Report #19-224-CC) 
 
J. City Manager's Report  
 
K.  City Councilmember Reports 
 
L.  Adjournment 
 

At every regular meeting of the City Council, in addition to the public comment period where the public shall have the right 
to address the City Council on any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right 
to directly address the Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during 
the City Council’s consideration of the item.  
 
At every special meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on 
any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either before or during consideration of the item.  



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Agenda Amended 
October 29, 2019 
Page 3 

 

For appeal hearings, appellant and applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.  
 
If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of 
Menlo Park at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public 
record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the city clerk’s office, 701 
Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours. Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or 
services in attending or participating in City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620. 
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956. Members of the public 
can view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at menlopark.org/agenda and can receive 
email notification of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Notify Me” service at menlopark.org/notifyme. 
Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 10/17/2019) 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 





Staff Report #: 19-221-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

community calendar, economic development website, Facebook and Twitter. Additionally, InMenlo and the 
Almanac published articles about the meeting. At the meeting, staff received positive feedback from the 
proposed draft ordinance. Distributors and publishers appreciated that the ordinance was not too restrictive, 
allowed them to brand the news racks while allowing them to distribute at locations they know best serve 
their customers. 
 
At the March 3, 2018 City Council meeting, staff presented an ordinance regulating newsracks for its first 
reading. The ordinance was introduced on a 3-1 vote with direction to amend section 13.28.030 by adding a 
section specifying that newsracks on private property do not require a newsrack permit but do require 
design review and approval by the City. Staff confirmed that such a provision was already included in the 
drafted ordinance. City Council also directed staff to take a mid to low cost recovery approach for permitting 
fees but a full cost recovery approach with enforcement. Staff was also asked to bring back a map that 
would denote which current newsracks would be noncompliant with the proposed ordinance. Staff created a 
map showing the location of downtown newsracks (Attachment C,) but has not yet expended the time 
necessary to determine which newsracks would become noncompliant under the ordinance. The ordinance 
was never brought back to City Council for a second reading due to a number of sudden key vacancies. 
 
Due to continued complaints and filled staff vacancies in key areas, staff is once again seeking a direction 
on how to proceed with this issue. 

 
Analysis 
Staff is continuing to hear concerns about the newsracks. Staff is seeking City Council direction on how to 
move this item forward and has identified several options for consideration. 
 
No ordinance/status quo 
The City Council can choose to not adopt an ordinance and allow the publishers to self-police. Even without 
an ordinance, the number of abandoned modular branded racks could be reduced if staff is aware of 
abandoned or unmaintained racks, seeks out the owner of the racks, and requests their removal. This 
approach could involve either passive/complaint-driven or active monitoring by staff to maintain an 
awareness of the state of newsracks. Both approaches would require staff time, and likely a reallocation of 
time to address the issue. However, there would be little improvement in the state of the green pedestal 
racks due to a lack of parties directly responsible for them. Without improvement in the state of the green 
pedestal racks, it is likely that complaints about newsracks would continue. 
 
Originally proposed ordinance 
The City Council can direct staff to bring back the ordinance with requested amendments (Attachment A) 
that was introduced by City Council on March 13, 2018. The City currently has no ordinance regulating 
newsracks and therefore, very little ability to address the concerns raised about unmaintained, abandoned 
or modular racks blocking sidewalks, crosswalks or bike racks. Adopting this ordinance, which requires 
publishers to obtain permits, will give the City current contact information for all racks placed in the public 
right of way and allow the City to legally remove any racks that do not meet the standards enumerated in 
the ordinance. The ordinance establishes a newsrack permit process, standards for maintenance and 
display of newsracks, size and design standards, standards for placement and location of newsracks, and 
an enforcement mechanism for abandoned or unmaintained newsracks throughout Menlo Park.  
 
Fees for a newsracks permit are expected to be lower than an encroachment permit and would be set to 
cover the cost of reviewing and renewing permits, verifying modular rack placement and anchoring, and 
enforcement. The majority of review time is expected to come with the initial permit. Subsequent renewals 
should be relatively nominal. Staff will recommend lower fees to encourage compliance with the new 

Page 2



Staff Report #: 19-221-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

ordinance and higher fees for non-compliance (abandonment, other violations.) 
 
This course of action would require minimal staff resources in the short term in terms of ordinance adoption 
since the groundwork for the ordinance has largely been laid. Staff would be able to bring the ordinance 
back to City Council for adoption before the end of the year and begin to implement the permitting and 
removal process following adoption. 
 
Modified version of originally proposed ordinance 
The City Council could choose to take the previously proposed ordinance and modify it in order to create a 
uniform look in the downtown area. This option would carve out a special area around the downtown where 
newsracks would be required to be within designated areas surrounded by a physical screen or corral (see 
Attachment B for example.) This corral method has been used in Burlingame and Palo Alto to improve the 
look and feel of their respective downtowns. Publishers would still be permitted to choose the style, size, 
and color of their newsracks as long as they met the standards laid out in the ordinance. Outside of the 
designated downtown area, newsracks would be subject to the provisions of the originally proposed 
ordinance. 
 
This approach would require the City Council to give staff direction on the number, size and location of the 
corrals. One method that would minimize disruption to both publishers and their customers would be to 
select the locations where there are already a large grouping of newsracks (Attachment C) as the 
designated corral areas. The removal of the green pedestal racks and abandoned modular racks would 
greatly reduce the current footprint of downtown newsracks and make corrals a viable option. 
 
New ordinance 
The City Council may also direct staff to take a fresh look at the newsrack issue. This would include a 
holistic look and complete reconsideration of the City’s options for an ordinance. Many neighboring cities 
have adopted a newsrack ordinance with varying degrees of regulation. Most ordinances include the 
following sections: 
• Requirement of newsrack permit – allows the City to collect current contact information, insurance, 

business license and indemnification requirements for the publisher and track the locations of the 
newsracks. 

• Maintenance and standards – sets quality guidelines that must be upheld by the permit holder, restricts 
advertising on the newsracks and gives the City authorization to remove abandoned newsracks. 

• Placement – gives general guidelines on where newsracks can be placed including for ADA accessibility 
and traffic safety and states how newsracks should be mounted to the sidewalks. 

• Abatement of violation – allows the City to cancel a permit and remove newsracks for health and safety 
reasons or violation of permit conditions. 

 
In addition, such an approach would mean reconsidering the following questions: 
1. Does the City Council want to standardize the newsracks? 

a. Style (pedestal or modular) 
b. Size 
c. Color 
d. Manufacturer and/or model 

2. Does the City Council want to regulate newsracks locations within the downtown? 
a. If so, does the City Council want to screen newsracks with physical corrals? 

3. Does the City Council want to restrict the number of newsracks allowed? 
 
 

Page 3



Staff Report #: 19-221-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

This process would also benefit from re-engaging with stakeholder groups such as publishers, business 
owners and residents. The timeline for this approach would stretch into next year and require considerably 
more staff resources than the other options. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
The impact on city resources will depend on the approach selected by the City Council. Choosing to not 
pursue any ordinance would allow staff to focus on other items unless it was coupled with direction for staff 
to take a more active role in contacting the owners of abandoned racks. Bringing back the previously 
proposed ordinance would require little staff resources in the ordinance adoption phase as that ordinance 
has already gone through a significant public process. Implementation of the ordinance will require staff 
time and City financial resources to both remove and dispose of noncompliant racks and to review the 
permits for all the remaining and new newsracks in the City. There would be significant staff resources 
expended in setting up this permitting process during the first year. Similarly, the modified version of the 
previously proposed ordinance would not require a large investment of staff resources if minimal changes 
are made during adoption, although it would be a more work-intensive choice than no modifications. 
Ordinance implementation would also be a similarly staff resource-intensive process. Finally, pursuing a 
new ordinance that differs substantially from the previously proposed one would require staff to invest 
significantly into restarting the ordinance development process and re-engaging with stakeholders. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Staff will also notify by email the previously identified publishers operating in the 
City about the study session.  

 
Attachments 
A. Draft Menlo Park newsracks ordinance introduced on March 13, 2018 
B. Burlingame Corral Design 
C. Map of downtown newsracks 
 
Report prepared by: 
John Passmann, Management Analyst II 
 
Report Reviewed by: 
Deanna Chow, Interim Community Development Director 
 

Page 4



1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER ________ 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
ADDING CHAPTER 13.28 [NEWSRACKS] OF TITLE 13 [STREETS, 
SIDEWALKS, AND UTILITIES] OF THE MENLO PARK MUNICIPAL 
CODE  

 
The City Council of the City Menlo Park does hereby ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS. 
 
A. It is in the public interest to establish regulations that balance the right to distribute 
information through newsracks with the right of persons to reasonably access and use 
public property.  
B. The City of Menlo Park currently has limited control on the design, placement, and 
installation of newsracks within the public rights of way, which newsracks can cause 
interference and obstruction with the use of public rights of way; can cause interference 
with the safe and reasonable use of private property adjoining or in the vicinity of such 
public rights of way, and further can adversely impact the aesthetics of the City of Menlo 
Park creating structural and visual clutter. The goal of this ordinance will reduce such 
negative impacts.  
C.  The City Council of the City of Menlo Park finds and declares the addition of 
Chapter 13.28 [Newsracks] is necessary for the above reasons. 
 
SECTION 2. ADDITION TO CODE. Section 13.28 [Newsracks] is hereby added in its 
entirety as follows:  
 
Sections: 
13.28.010 Purpose. 
13.28.020 Definitions. 
13.28.030 Permit Required. 
13.28.040 Obtaining a Permit.  
13.28.050 Standards for Maintenance and Display of Newsrack. 
13.28.060 Size and Design Standards.  
13.28.070 Standards for Placement and Location of Newsrack. 
13.28.080 Blinder Racks Required. 
13.28.090 Violation - Enforcement. 
13.28.100 Nuisance. 
13.28.110 Removal and Hearing. 
13.28.120 Abandoned Newsracks. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

Page 5



2 

13.28.010 Purpose. 
 
The purpose and scope of the regulations in this chapter are as follows: 
 
     (a)  The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all newsracks located within the City 
of Menlo Park; provided, that certain provisions, as specified, shall apply only to 
newsracks located on public property. 
     (b)  It is in the public interest to establish regulations that balance the right to distribute 
information through newsracks with the right of persons to reasonably access and use 
public property. 
     (c)  The public health, safety, welfare and convenience require that interference with 
vehicular, bicycle, wheelchair or pedestrian traffic be avoided; obstruction of sight 
distance and views of traffic signs and street-crossing pedestrians be eliminated; damage 
done to sidewalks or streets be minimized and repaired; the good appearance of public 
property be maintained; trees and other landscaping be allowed to grow without 
disturbance; access to emergency and other public facilities be maintained; and ingress 
and egress from, and the enjoyment of store window displays on, properties adjoining 
public property be protected. 
     (d)  Newsracks placed and maintained on public and private property, absent some 
reasonable regulation, may unreasonably interfere with the use of such property, and may 
present hazards to persons or property. 
     (e)  The regulations on the time, place and manner of the placement, location and 
maintenance of newsracks set forth in this chapter are carefully tailored to ensure that the 
purposes stated in this section are implemented while still providing ample opportunities 
for the distribution of news and other information to the public.  
 
13.28.020 Definitions. 
 
For the purposes of this chapter, the following words and phrases are defined and shall 
be given the meaning set out in this section unless it is apparent from the context that a 
different meaning is intended. 
 
     (a)  “Abandoned newsrack” means any newsrack which remains empty or contains 
only outdated issues for fourteen(14) consecutive calendar days; provided, that a 
newsrack remaining empty due to labor strike or any temporary and extraordinary 
interruption of distribution or publication by the newspaper or other publication sold or 
distributed from that newsrack shall not be deemed abandoned.  
     (b)  “Harmful matter” means and is defined as in California Penal Code Section 313, 
as such section may from time to time be amended. 
     (c)  “Newsrack” means any self-service or coin-operated box, container, storage unit, 
or other dispenser installed, used or maintained for the display and sale or distribution of 
newspapers, periodicals or other publications. 
     (d)  “Person” means any individual, partnership, firm, association, corporation, limited 
liability company, or other legal entity. 
     (e)  “Public place(s)” means and includes any public property owned or controlled by 
the City of Menlo Park or any other public agency, or any outdoor private property which 
is open to the public. 

Page 6



3 

     (f)  “Public property” means any public right-of-way or any property owned or controlled 
by the City of Menlo Park, including, without limitation, streets, sidewalks, alleys, plazas, 
and rights-of-way. 
 
13.28.030 Permit Required. 
 
It is unlawful to install, place, maintain or cause to be placed, installed or maintained a 
newsrack on, or projecting on or over, any public property without first receiving a permit 
therefor from the City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee, and unless 
such newsrack is in compliance with the provisions of this chapter; provided that a 
newsrack located on public property as of the effective date of this chapter, may continue 
to remain in such location for one hundred twenty (120) days following such effective 
date, under the following conditions: 
 
     (a)  The newsrack is in compliance with the requirements for the installation and 
maintenance of newsracks contained in this chapter; and 
     (b)  A permit application for such newsrack has been filed as of that date with the City 
of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee by the duly authorized representative 
of both the publisher and, if applicable, any independent distributor authorized to service 
the publisher’s newsrack; and 
     (c)  A permit pursuant to such application has not been denied with respect to any 
such newsrack. 
 
If no permit application has been filed by that date by the duly authorized representative 
of both the publisher and, if applicable, any independent distributor authorized to service 
the publisher’s newsrack, or such permit is denied, such newsrack shall be deemed to be 
in violation of the provisions of this chapter. Initial permits shall be valid until December 
31, 2019. Thereafter, permits shall be valid for up to two years, expiring on December 31 
of each even numbered year. 
 
Newsracks on private property do not require a newsrack permit, but do require design 
review approval by the City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee if they do 
not conform to the design standards in this chapter. Existing newsracks on private 
property shall constitute a non-conforming use to the extent they do not conform to the 
design standards set form in this chapter.  
 
13.28.040 Obtaining a Permit. 
 
   (a)  Exclusive Requirements. The provisions of this chapter shall be the exclusive 
requirements for newsracks located on or encroaching onto public property in the city. 
   (b)  Application. Application for a newsrack permit for each location sought shall be 
submitted to the City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee on a form 
prescribed by the City of Menlo Park, which shall include, without limitation: 
     (1)  The name, street and mailing address, and telephone number of the applicant, 
which shall be the duly authorized representative of both the publisher and, if applicable, 
any independent distributor authorized to service the publisher’s newsrack for which the 
permit is sought; 

Page 7



4 

     (2)  The name, street and mailing address and telephone number of the distributor or 
other responsible person whom the city may notify or contact at any time concerning the 
applicant’s newsrack(s); 
     (3)  A description of the exact proposed location (including a map or site plan, drawn 
to scale, with adequate locational information to verify conformance with this chapter) and 
the proposed means of affixing the proposed newsrack; 
     (4)  A description of the proposed newsrack, including its dimensions, the number of 
publication spaces it will contain, and whether it contains a coin-operated mechanism; 
     (5)  The name and frequency of publication of each publication proposed to be 
contained in the newsrack; 
     (6)   A statement signed by the applicant that the applicant agrees to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless, the City of Menlo Park and its representatives from all claims, 
demands, loss, fines or liability to the extent arising out of or in connection with the 
installation, use or maintenance of any newsrack on public property by or on behalf of 
any such person, except such injury or harm as may be caused solely and exclusively by 
the negligence of the City of Menlo Park or its authorized representatives;   
     (7)  A statement signed by the applicant that the applicant agrees, upon removal of a 
newsrack, to repair any damage to the public property caused by the newsrack or its 
removal; and 
     (8)  Each applicant shall submit along with the permit application a fee as set forth in 
the City’s Master Fee Schedule.  Additionally each applicant shall submit an insurance 
certificate naming the City of Menlo Park as an additional insured under the same terms 
as required for a public works encroachment permit. 
     (c)  Issuance of Permit. A permit shall be issued within fifteen (15) working days from 
the date of filing the application with the City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its 
designee if the application is properly completed and the type of newsrack and location 
proposed for each newsrack meet the standards set forth in this chapter. A single permit 
shall be issued for each newsrack location applied for by an applicant which meets the 
standards of this chapter. Each permit holder shall maintain an active City of Menlo Park 
business license throughout the term of the permit. An applicant may submit more than 
one application, in order to apply for additional locations. A permit shall not be transferable 
without written authorization of the City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its 
designee.  
     (d)  Period of Permit Validity. Permits shall remain valid if re-registered with the City of 
Menlo Park prior to expiration, on a form provided by the City of Menlo Park. Failing to re-
register or explicit cancellation by a permit holder will void the permit and it will be 
ineffective thereafter. Unregistered newsracks may be treated as abandoned under 
Section 13.28.120 or other applicable enforcement mechanism. 
     (e)  Issuance of Permit Sticker. Each permittee shall be issued a pre-printed sticker 
for each permitted newsrack, which shall be affixed to the lower right corner of the front 
of each permitted newsrack. Failure to have a permit sticker affixed to a newsrack will be 
treated as abandoned under Section 13.28.120. 
     (f)  Denial of Permit. If a newsrack permit is disapproved, in whole or in part, the City 
of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee shall notify the applicant within thirty 
(30) working days from the date of filing a complete application with the City of Menlo 
Park, explaining the reasons for the denial of the permit. The applicant shall have ten (10) 

Page 8



5 

calendar days within which to appeal the decision to the City Manager in accordance with 
the appeal provisions set forth in subsection (g) of this section. 
     (g)  Appeal of Permit Denial. After receiving a notice of appeal, the City Manager or 
the designee of the City Manager shall conduct a hearing within thirty (30) days of the 
receipt of the applicant’s appeal, unless otherwise agreed to by the applicant. Written 
notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given to the applicant, and shall be 
posted in the official posting locations of the City of Menlo Park. The hearing shall be 
informal, but oral and written evidence may be given by both sides. The City Manager or 
designee shall render a written decision within twenty (20) days after the date of the 
hearing. The decision of the City Manager shall be final. 
     (h)  Amendment to Permit. In the event of a change in any of the information contained 
in the application, the permittee shall submit such change in writing to the City of Menlo 
Park Public Works Director or its designee. A permittee may install and maintain 
additional newsracks by an amendment to the permit. The rules and procedures of this 
section shall also apply to the review and approval of any such amendment. 
 
13.28.050 Standards for Maintenance and Display of Newsracks. 
 
     (a)  Every person placing or maintaining a newsrack on public property shall comply 
with the following requirements: 
     (1)  Every newsrack shall be maintained in a neat and clean condition, and in good 
repair at all times. For example, without limitation, every newsrack shall be reasonably 
free of dirt and grease, be reasonably free of chipped, faded, peeling or cracked paint, be 
reasonably free of rust and corrosion, have no broken or cracked plastic or glass parts, 
and have no broken structural parts. No signs, advertising, stickers or adhesive labels, 
other than City of Menlo Park issued identification/approval labels, unrelated to 
publications in the newsracks shall be displayed on newsracks.  
     (2)  Every newsrack shall be constructed, installed and maintained in a safe and 
secure condition. 
     (3)  Every newsrack shall be made of solid material on all sides, so as to contain the 
material inside the newsrack in a manner as to prevent it from blowing away or otherwise 
becoming litter. No wire or other open form of newsrack shall be permitted. 
     (4)  Every newsrack shall be kept free of graffiti. 
     (5) Every newsrack that sits on legs shall be kept free of dirt and litter under the 
newsrack. 
     (6)  Every newsrack shall be painted or covered with a protective coating, so as to 
keep it free from rust, and shall be cleaned and repainted on a regular basis. 
     (7)  Every coin-operated newsrack shall be equipped with a coin-return device that is 
maintained in good repair and working order. 
     (8)  Every coin-operated newsrack shall display information on how to secure a refund 
in the event of coin return malfunction. Such information shall be placed in a visible 
location on the front or top of the newsrack, and shall be legible. 
     (9)  Other than the display of the publication contained therein, no newsrack shall 
display or be affixed with any words or pictures except for the identifying information, and 
the coin return information, if applicable. 
    (10)  Old or out-of-date material removed from any newsrack by any person who owns, 
maintains, or stocks the newsrack shall be recycled or disposed of in a lawful manner and 

Page 9



6 

not in any City owned trash receptacle. Such material shall not be disposed of in any trash 
receptacle owned or rented by others, without the express written consent of the owner 
or renter of such receptacle. Such material shall be disposed of in a manner that does not 
cause the material to become litter. 
    (11) Upon the removal of a newsrack, the public right-of-way shall be returned to its 
original condition. 
     (b) Every newsrack located in a public place shall be affixed with identifying 
information, which shall contain the name, address and telephone number of the 
newsrack owner and of the distributor of the publication(s) contained therein. Such 
information shall be placed in a visible location on the front or top of the newsrack, and 
shall be legible. The size of the identifying information shall be no larger than three (3) 
inches by five (5) inches. 
 
13.28.060 Size and Design Standards. 
 
No newsrack shall be placed, installed or maintained on any public property except in 
compliance with the following standards: 
     (a)  No newsrack shall be more than fifty (50) inches high (including the pedestal in 
the case of modular newsracks) measured from the ground to the top surface of the 
newsrack, nor more than twenty-four (24) inches deep, nor more than twenty-four (24) 
inches wide. 
     (b)  The highest operable part of the coin slot, if provided, and all controls, dispensers 
and other operable components of a newsrack shall be no higher than forty-eight (48) 
inches above the ground, and no lower than fifteen (15) inches above the ground. 
     (c)  The design of a newsrack shall not create a danger to the persons using the 
newsrack in a reasonably foreseeable manner. All newsracks shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations including, without limitation, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and other laws and regulations relating to barrier-free 
design. 
 
13.28.070 Standards for Placement and Location of Newsracks. 
 
     (a)  No newsrack shall be placed, installed or maintained on any public property when 
such installation, use or maintenance endangers the safety of persons or property. No 
newsrack shall be placed, installed or maintained on any public property except in 
compliance with the following standards: 
     (1)  Newsracks shall be placed only on a sidewalk, in one of the following locations: 
     (A)  Near a curb, in which case, the back of the newsrack shall be placed no less than 
eighteen (18) inches nor more than twenty-four (24) inches from the face of the curb; or 
     (B)  Adjacent to the wall of a building, in which case, the back of the newsrack shall 
be placed parallel to such wall and not more than six (6) inches from the wall. 
     (2)  Every newsrack shall be placed so as to open toward the sidewalk. 
     (3) Every newsrack shall be affixed to the sidewalk or to another newsrack, in a 
manner approved by the permit therefor; provided, no newsrack shall be chained to 
another newsrack. Newsracks shall not be chained or otherwise attached to any bus 
shelter, bench, street light, utility pole or device or sign pole, or to any tree, shrub or other 
plant, nor situated upon any landscaped area. 

Page 10



7 

     (4)  No newsrack shall be placed, installed or maintained: 
     (A)  Within five (5) feet of any marked or unmarked crosswalk as measured from the 
curb return; 
     (B)  Within five (5) feet of any fire hydrant, call box, or other emergency facility; or bus 
bench; 
     (C)  At any location where the clear space for the passage of pedestrians is reduced 
to less than six (6) feet except that in areas where physical obstructions provide for less 
than a six (6) foot clearance, a clear space for passage of not less than four (4) feet may 
be permitted for a distance of not more than ten (10) feet with the written approval of the 
City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee; 
     (D)  Within five (5) feet of any driveway; 
     (E)  Within five (5) feet of any red curb of a bus stop zone; 
     (F)  Within five (5) feet of the curb return of any wheelchair curb ramp not in a marked 
crosswalk; 
     (G)  In such a manner as to impede or interfere with the reasonable use of any 
commercial window display or access to or from any building; 
     (H)  In such a manner as to impede or interfere with the reasonable use of any bicycle 
rack; 
     (I)  In such a manner as to block or cover any portion of an underground utility vault, 
manhole, or other sidewalk underground access location. 
     (5)  Any newsrack placed within Caltrans jurisdiction (such as along El Camino Real 
or portions of Willow Road) must  Comply with the applicable Caltrans Maintenance 
Agreement held by the City of Menlo Park. 
     (b)  The City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee may allow a permittee 
to place a newsrack in a location in variance of the standards otherwise required by this 
section if it is found that such variance will not be detrimental to the public safety and that, 
due to the existing physical constraints at that location, imposition of the standards would 
make placement impossible and would cause a hardship to the permittee and its patrons. 
The written findings and the variance shall be made part of the permit. Prior to considering 
whether or not to grant a variance, the City of Menlo Park Director of Public Works or its 
designee shall provide written notice of the requested variance to the owner(s) of the real 
property adjacent to or abutting the proposed newsrack location. 
     (c)  If sufficient space does not exist to accommodate all newsracks sought to be 
placed at one location without violating the standards set forth in this chapter, the City of 
Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee shall give priority as to that location to 
publications on a historical “first come first served” basis to permit applicants as follows: 
     (1)  First priority shall be publications that are published two (2) or more times a week; 
     (2)  Second priority shall be given to publications that are published once per week; 
     (3)  Third priority shall be given to publications that are published less than once per 
week but more than once per month; 
     (4)  Fourth priority shall be given to publications that are published monthly or less 
frequently than monthly. 

In the event the City of Menlo Park is required to utilize the priority system 
described in subsections (d)(1) through (4), the City of Menlo Park shall permit only one 
rack per publication or distributor in a single location. 
 
13.28.080 Blinder Racks Required.  

Page 11



8 

 
Section 313.1 of the California Penal Code shall govern the display, offer for sale or selling 
of harmful matter as defined in CPC Section 313(a), to minors in vending machines, 
selling such matter, unattended by an adult at the time of such sale, located in and upon 
public places. No material which is harmful to minors, as defined in Section 313 of the 
California Penal Code, shall be displayed in a public place, other than a public place from 
which minors are excluded, unless blinder racks are placed in front of the material so that 
the lower two-thirds of the material is not exposed to view. 
 
13.28.090 Violation- Enforcement.  
 
    (a)  It shall be illegal to place, install, or maintain any newsrack or any material in a 
newsrack in a manner contrary to any provision of this chapter. 
    (b)  Any person who violates any provision of this chapter shall be guilty of an infraction 
and upon conviction thereof shall be punished as provided in Section 1.12.010 [Penalty 
for violations] of this code. 
    (c)  The provisions contained in this chapter shall be subject to the code enforcement 
authority of the city as provided in Title 1 of this code. 
 
13.28.100 Nuisance. 
 
Any newsrack or any material in a newsrack placed, installed or maintained in violation 
of this chapter shall constitute a public nuisance and may be abated in accordance with 
applicable provisions of law. 
 
13.28.110 Removal and Hearing.  
 
In addition to the enforcement remedies available to the City of Menlo Park, which are set 
forth in Title 1 and in Sections 13.28.090 and 13.28.100 of this chapter, any newsrack 
placed, installed or maintained in violation of this chapter may be removed by the City of 
Menlo Park, subject to the notice and hearing procedures set forth in this section. 
     (a)  Notice of Violation. Before removal of any newsrack, the City of Menlo Park shall 
notify the owner and/or distributor of the violation. Written notification by first class mail to 
the address or addresses shown on the offending newsrack shall constitute adequate 
notice; and in addition the City will provide notice by sending an email to the email address 
listed on the owner and/or distributor’s permit application. The City may, but need not, 
affix an additional notice tag onto the offending newsrack. If no identification is shown on 
the newsrack, posting of the notice on the newsrack alone shall be sufficient. The notice 
shall state the nature of the violation, shall specify actions necessary to correct the 
violation, and shall give the owner and/or distributor ten (10) business days from the date 
appearing on the notice to either remedy the violation or to request a meeting before the 
City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee. The date on the notice shall be 
no earlier than the date on which the notice is mailed or affixed to the newsrack, as the 
case may be. 
     (b)  Meeting and Decision. Any owner or distributor notified under subsection (a) may 
request a meeting with the City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee by 
delivering a written request therefor within ten (10) business days from the date appearing 

Page 12



9 

on the notice. The meeting shall be informal, but oral and written evidence may be given 
by both sides. The City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee shall give its 
decision within ten (10) business days after the date of the meeting. Any action by the 
city to remove the newsrack shall be stayed pending the written decision of the City of 
Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee following the meeting. 
     (c)  Removal and Impoundment. The City of Menlo Park may remove and impound a 
newsrack or newsracks in accordance with this section following the written decision of 
the City of Menlo Park Public Works Director or its designee upholding the determination 
of a violation, or if the owner or distributor has neither requested a meeting nor remedied 
the violation within ten (10) business days from the date on the notice. An impounded 
newsrack shall be retained by the City of Menlo Park for a period of at least ninety (90) 
calendar days following the removal, and may be recovered by the permittee upon 
payment of a fee as set forth in the municipal fee schedule. An impounded newsrack and 
its contents may be disposed of by the City of Menlo Park after ninety (90) calendar days. 
     (d)  Summary Abatement. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (a) and (b), 
prior notice and an opportunity to be heard shall not be required prior to removal of any 
newsrack that is installed or maintained in such a place or manner as to pose an 
immediate or clear and present danger to persons, vehicles or property or any newsrack 
that is placed in any location without a permit. In such case, the City of Menlo Park shall 
proceed in the following manner: 
     (1)  Within the next working day following removal, the City of Menlo Park shall notify 
by telephone the permittee or, in the case of an unpermitted newsrack, the owner of the 
newsrack or a person whose name is shown on the required identification, if available. 
Within three (3) business days, the City of Menlo Park shall send written confirmation of 
the telephoned notice. The written confirmation shall contain the reasons for the removal 
and information supporting the removal, and shall inform the recipient of the right to 
request, in writing or in person, a post-removal meeting within four (4) business days of 
the date of such written notice and the person to whom such request shall be made. 
     (2)  Upon timely request, the City of Menlo Park shall provide a meeting within two (2) 
business days of the request, unless the requesting party agrees to a later date. The 
proceeding shall be informal, but oral and written evidence may be given by both sides. 
The City of Menlo Park designee hearing the matter shall give his or her decision in writing 
to the requesting party within two (2) business days after such meeting. If the City of 
Menlo Park hearing officer finds that the removal was proper, he or she shall notify the 
requesting party to pay any applicable penalties and costs and recover the newsrack. If 
the City of Menlo Park hearing officer finds that the removal was improper and that 
placement of the newsrack was lawful, he or she shall order that the newsrack be 
released and reinstalled without charge. 
     (3)  If the owner and distributor of an unpermitted rack cannot be determined and the 
rack does not contain the required identification, no notice of the removal shall be 
required. 
 
13.28.120 Abandoned Newsracks. 
 
An abandoned newsrack may be removed by the city and impounded, pursuant to the 
notice and hearing procedures set forth in Section 13.28.110. The City of Menlo Park may 

Page 13



10 

dispose of the newsrack if the permittee does not claim the newsrack and pay any 
required fees within ninety (90) days of its removal. 
 
SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any section of this ordinance, or part hereof, is held by a 
court of competent jurisdiction in a final judicial action to be void, voidable or 
unenforceable, such section, or part hereof, shall be deemed severable from the 
remaining sections of this ordinance and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining 
sections hereof. 
 
SECTION 4. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT DETERMINATION. The 
City Council hereby finds that this ordinance is not subject to the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) because the activity is not a project as 
defined by Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines. The ordinance has no potential for 
resulting in physical change to the environment either directly or indirectly. 
 
SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLISHING. This ordinance shall take effect 30 
days after adoption. The City Clerk shall cause publication of the ordinance within 15 days 
after passage in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the city 
or, if none, the posting in at least three public places in the city. Within 15 days after the 
adoption of the ordinance amendment, a summary of the amendment shall be published 
with the names of the council members voting for and against the amendment. 
 
INTRODUCED on the thirteenth day of March, 2018. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED as an ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a regular meeting 
of said Council on the __ day of ___________, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 
       _______________________  
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________ 
 City Clerk 

Page 14









THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 18





   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
September 24, 2019 
Page 2 

 

 
 Mayor Mueller adjourned to the special business at 5:59 p.m. 

6:00 p.m. Special Meeting (City Hall - “Downtown” Conference Room, 1st Floor) 
 Mayor Mueller called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m. 

C.  Special Business 
C1. Interviews of Planning Commission applicants 
 
 The City Council conducted interviews with the two applicant; Jeff Kleck and Larry Khale. 
 
6:30 p.m. Study Session (City Council Chambers) 
 
 City Council reconvened at 6:41 p.m. 
 
SS1. Provide direction on Downtown parking utility underground project and future citywide 

undergrounding priorities (Staff Report #19-200-CC) 
 
 Senior Project Manager Morad Fakhrai and Cindy Middleson made the presentation (Attachment). 
 
 The City Council received clarification that the underground of utilities are performed with other 

street and sidewalk projects to limit the need to excavate multiple occasions.  There was discussion 
on utilizing utility user tax for the project.  City Council directed staff to return this item with projects 
ranked with the approved criteria. 

 
• Steve Van Pelt suggested other undergrounding needs in Menlo Park and undergrounding the 

large transmission lines.  
• Henry Riggs spoke in support of undergrounding in proposed roadways but in opposition in 

parking lots. 
 
 City Council took a recess at 7:17 p.m. 
 
 City Council reconvened at 7:24 p.m. 
 
Regular Meeting 
 
D. Call To Order  
 
 Mayor Mueller called the meeting to order at 7:24 p.m. 
 
E.  Roll Call  
 
 Present: Carlton, Combs (excused at 8:28 p.m.), Nash, Mueller 
 Absent: Taylor 

Staff: City Manager Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City Attorney Cara Silver, City Clerk 
Judi A. Herren 

 
F.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 Mayor Mueller led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Page 20



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
September 24, 2019 
Page 3 

 

G.  Public Comment 
 
 No public comment. 
  
 Mayor Mueller reordered the agenda. 
 
J.  Consent Calendar  
 
J1. Accept the City Council meeting minutes for August 20 and 27, 2019 (Attachment) 
 
J2. Introduction of Ordinance No. 1059 repealing Chapter 2.58 (Safe City) of Title 2 (Administration and 

Personnel) (Staff Report #19-191-CC) 
 
J3. Waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 

2019 California Energy Code that require higher levels of building electrification and solar production 
for newly constructed buildings to reduce greenhouse gas emissions effective January 1, 2020  
(Staff Report #19-195-CC) 

 
• Janelle London spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 

2019 California Energy Code. 
• Josh Becker spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 2019 

California Energy Code. 
• Mitch Slokiak spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 2019 

California Energy Code. 
• Kristin Duriseti spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 

2019 California Energy Code. 
• Matt James, board member of Menlo Spark, spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish 

local amendments to the 2019 California Energy Code. 
• Chris DeCardy spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 

2019 California Energy Code. 
• Dashiell Leeds spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 

2019 California Energy Code. 
• Steve Westly spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 2019 

California Energy Code. 
• Mark Jacobson spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to the 

2019 California Energy Code. 
• Zoe Wong-VanHaren spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1057 to establish local amendments to 

the 2019 California Energy Code 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/ Nash) to waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 1057 to 
establish local amendments to the 2019 California Energy Code that require higher levels of building 
electrification and solar production for newly constructed buildings to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
effective January 1, 2020, passed 4-0-1 (Taylor absent). 
 
J4. Receive and file the preliminary year-end close financial review of general fund operations as of 

June 30, 2019 (Staff Report #19-197-CC) 

Page 21



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
September 24, 2019 
Page 4 

 

 
J5. Receive and file the investment portfolio review as of June 30, 2019 (Staff Report #19-193-CC) 
 
J6. Authorize the city manager to enter into an agreement with Black & Veatch Management Consulting 

to develop the 2020 water rate study (Staff Report #19-198-CC) 
 
N.  City Councilmember Reports 
 
N1. Authorize a request to San Mateo County Labs, a division of the County of San Mateo, for air quality 

monitors in the Belle Haven neighborhood (Staff Report #19-199-CC) 
  
 Assistant City Manager Nick Pegueros introduced the item. 
 

• Pamela Jones spoke in support of authorizing a request to San Mateo County Labs, a division of 
the County of San Mateo, for air quality monitors in the Belle Haven neighborhood. 

• Diane Bailey spoke in support of air monitors in the Belle Haven neighborhood. 
 
The City Council discussed placing monitors in other areas of Menlo Park and received information 
of the collection and availability of the data. 
 

ACTION: By acclamation, the City Council directed staff to draft and send a letter requesting San Mateo 
County Labs, a division of the County of San Mateo, for air quality monitors in the Belle Haven 
neighborhood. 
 
J7. Waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 1058 adopting a local minimum wage ordinance 

effective January 1, 2020 (Staff Report #19-196-CC) 
 

• Fran Dehn spoke on the challenges facing small businesses with the proposed minimum wage 
ordinance.  

• Rayna Lehman spoke in support of the minimum wage ordinance.  
• Anna Chow, owner of Cheeky Monkey, spoke about the challenges to small businesses. 
• Grace Streltzov spoke in support of Ordinance No. 1058. 
• Anthony R. Morales spoke in support of a phased approach to the minimum wage ordinance. 
 
The City Council discussed the challenges to small businesses. 

 
ACTION: Motion and second (Nash/ Combs) to waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 1058 
adopting a local minimum wage ordinance effective January 1, 2020, passed 3-1-1 (Carlton dissenting and 
Taylor absent). 
 
 City Councilmember Combs was excused at 8:28 p.m. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/ Nash) to approve the consent calendar, except items J3 and J7, 
passed 3-0-2 (Combs and Taylor absent). 
 
 

Page 22



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
September 24, 2019 
Page 5 

 

I.  Commissioner Reports  
 
I1. Environmental Quality Commission update 
 
 Environmental Quality Commission (EQC) Chair Ryann Price made the presentation (Attachment). 
 
 The City Council discussed the PACE program and directed the EQC to examine pesticide 

notifications.   
 
I2. Parks and Recreation Commission update (Attachment) 
 
 Park and Recreation Chair Christopher Harris made the presentation. 
 
K. Regular Business  
 
K1. Authorize the city manager to enter into a three-year agreement with OpenGov up to $239,000 to 

upgrade to the City’s budgeting and financial reporting software (Staff Report #19-201-CC) 
 
 Finance and Budget Manager Dan Jacobson and Management Analyst II Brandon Cortez 

introduced the item. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/ Nash) to authorize the city manager to enter into a three-year 
agreement with OpenGov up to $239,000 to upgrade to the City’s budgeting and financial reporting 
software, passed 3-0-2 (Combs and Taylor absent). 
 
K2. Authorize the city manager to apply for the affordable housing and sustainable communities grant – 

transportation improvements fund (Staff Report #19-202-CC) 
 
 Deputy Community Development Director - Housing Rhonda Coffman made the presentation. 
 
 The City Council discussed the impacts to the El Camino Real crossing improvement project and the 

need to connect the Dumbarton crossing to Kelly Park. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/ Nash) to authorize the city manager to apply for the affordable 
housing and sustainable communities grant – transportation improvements fund, passed 3-0-2 (Combs and 
Taylor absent). 
  
L. Informational Items  
 
L1. City Council agenda topics: October to December 2019 (Staff Report #19-192-CC) 
 
 City Councilmember Nash commented appointments need to be made to the Facebook/ Willow 

Village subcommittee and requested that regional preparedness efforts return to the City Council. 
 
L2. Update on the Parks and Recreation facilities master plan process (Staff Report #19-194-CC) 
 
 City Councilmember Nash spoke in support of the Burgess Park snack shack, but suggested that 

Onetta Harris is a better opportunity for a food vendor. 
 
M. City Manager's Report  

Page 23



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special and Regular Meeting Minutes – DRAFT 
September 24, 2019 
Page 6 

 

 No report. 
 
H.  Presentations and Proclamations  
 
H1. Communication plan presentation 
 
 Public Engagement Manager Clay Curtain made the presentation (Attachment). 
 

• Pamela Jones spoke in support of the report and provided suggestions on the website. 
 
N.  City Councilmember Reports 

 
City Councilmember Nash announced the housing study session on November 5 and the Stanford 
general use permit meeting at Palo Alto City Hall on October 26. 
 
City Councilmember Carlton announced the Sister Cities international annual meeting on November 
2 at Onetta Harris. 

  
O.  Adjournment 
 
 Mayor Mueller adjourned the meeting at 9:23 p.m. 
 
 Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page 24





   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 
October 1, 2019 
Page 2 

 

ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/ Combs) to accept the City Council adopted 2019-20 priorities and 
work plan quarterly update, passed unanimously. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/ Combs) to approve the consent calendar, except item E4, passed 
unanimously. 
 
F. Regular Business  
 
F1. Direction on biennial community survey methodology and vendor (Staff Report #19-210-CC) 
 
 Public Engagement Manager Clay Curtin introduced the item. 
 
 The City Council discussed the need for statistically significant results.  There was also discussion 

on previous experiences with the two vendors.  The City Council created a subcommittee to work on 
the survey questions for Godbe Research and appointed City Councilmembers Carlton and Nash.  
City Council requested that work from the subcommittee and staff return to the City Council before 
being released to the public. 

 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/ Nash) to select Godbe Research as the vendor for biennial 
community survey, passed unanimously. 
 
F2. Discussion of options for formation of re-districting committee following release of 2020 census 

information (Staff Report #19-207-CC) 
 
 Assistant City Attorney Cara Silver made the presentation (Attachment). 
 

• Pamela Jones spoke in support of an independent redistricting commission and keeping the 
charter separate (Attachment). 

 
The City Council received clarification on the details of an independent and advisory committee and 
discussed the previous advisory districting committee.  The City Council supported public outreach 
during the districting process.  
 
No action. 

 
F3. Review proposed City Council procedure #CC-19-010 “City Council powers and responsibilities” and 

provide direction to staff (Staff Report #19-206-CC) 
 
 Assistant City Manager Nick Pegueros introduced the item. 
 
 Assistant City Manager Pegueros detailed the major changes to the procedure.  The City Council 

provided the following direction: requested that Mayor Pro Tem be included in the agenda setting, 
updating “Grand Boulevard Initiative Taskforce” name, add to the notes of the Caltrain 
Modernization Local Policy Maker Group to include Rail Subcommittee members, add to the notes 
of the County of Santa Clara Community Resources Group for Stanford University to include ad hoc 
subcommittee on Stanford General Use Permit members, encourage City Council to report out on 
outside board meetings during City Councilmember Reports at City Council meetings, update the 
Mayor Pro Tem title to Vice Mayor, and include the Willow Village/ Facebook subcommittee.  The 
City Council requested this item be updated and returned on consent. 

Page 26



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

City Council Special Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 
October 1, 2019 
Page 3 

 

 No action. 
 
F4. Adopt the City Council’s regular meeting schedule for calendar year 2020 (Staff Report #19-185-CC) 
 
 The City Council discussed the advantages and disadvantages of a set second and fourth Tuesday 

meeting schedule.  The City Council directed staff to remove the April 14 and 28, 2020 meetings and 
add April 21, 2020. 

 
ACTION: Motion and second (Combs/ Carlton) to adopt the City Council’s regular meeting schedule for 
calendar year 2020, passed unanimously. 
 
G. City Manager's Report  
 
 No report. 
 
H.  City Councilmember Reports 
 

City Councilmember Nash announced the Stanford General Use Permit meeting at Palo Alto City 
Hall on October 22 at 6 p.m. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Taylor reported out on the Government Alliance on Race and Equity (GARE) 
training. 

 
 Mayor Mueller reported out on the Rail Subcommittee meeting 
  
I.  Adjournment 
 
 Mayor Mueller adjourned the meeting at 8:08 p.m. 
 
 Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 

Page 27



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 28





Staff Report #: 19-225-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

From 1939-1950 the property was used for agricultural use. Following that, the property was used as a gas 
station and automotive repair. In 1978, the gasoline station was demolished. In approximately 2006, two 
concrete foundations were poured but development of the site was never completed. Currently the property 
is vacant with two concrete foundations remaining. 
 
In 2016, MidPen Housing purchased the site and transferred it into an LLC called 1283 Willow Road with 
the intent to develop an affordable housing mixed use project. In connection with the purchase, MidPen 
commissioned Phase I and II environmental studies. In addition, MidPen commissioned a site management 
plan to address contaminants encountered during site redevelopment. MidPen has provided the City with 
copies of those environmental reports. 
 
During the purchase negotiations, MidPen became aware that other public entities may also be interested in 
purchasing or using the property. For tax reasons MidPen desires to dispose of the property before the end 
of 2019. 
 
MidPen provided the City with a property appraisal conducted in May 2019 by an MAI-certified appraiser. 
The property’s appraised value is $3,633,000. The City had the appraisal peer reviewed by its own 
appraiser and the City’s appraiser concurred with the value. 
 
The property is being sold “as is” and the purchase price is $3,633,000, the appraised value. It is anticipated 
that the property will close in the first couple of weeks of November 2019. Following sale of the property, 
MidPen has also requested use of a portion of the property for construction staging. This would assist in the 
development of MidPen’s Gateway Apartments project located at 1345 Willow Road, adjacent to the 
property. The initial term of the use agreement would be three years, with the option to extend for one 
additional year. In consideration for use of the property, MidPen would remove all weeds on the property 
and adjacent sidewalks, maintain the fence and restore the property to its current condition at the end of the 
use term. During the course of the agreement, the City would have the right to access the property to 
perform testing, surveys and other property investigations.  
 
At this point, the future use of the property is unknown. A public process will be conducted before deciding 
any future use, the fire district has expressed interest in acquiring the property if the City does not identify 
an immediate need for it. 

 

Impact on City Resources 
Funding for the property purchase would come from the general fund unassigned fund balance. Pending 
final audited balances for fiscal year ended June 30, the general fund unassigned fund balance is estimated 
to decrease to $2.76 million if the recommended action of appropriating $3.65 million is approved. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. Any subsequent use of the property would be subject to environmental review. 

 

 

 

Page 30



Staff Report #: 19-225-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 

Attachments 
A. Resolution  
B. Purchase agreement 
C. Use agreement 
D. Property map 
 

Report prepared by: 
Cara Silver, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Reviewed by: 
Justin Murphy, Deputy City Manager 
William L. McClure, City Attorney  

Page 31



RESOLUTION NO. 6523 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1283 WILLOW 
ROAD FROM MP 1283 WILLOW LLC FOR $3,633,000 AND APPROVE USE 
AGREEMENT TO PERMIT MIDPEN HOUSING CORP. TO USE PROPERTY FOR 
CONSTRUCTION STAGING 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park has read and considered that 
certain property purchase agreement and joint escrow instructions, between the City of 
Menlo Park and MP 1283 Willow LLC for the property located at 1283 Willow Road 
(“Property”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Menlo Park having been fully advised on the 
matter is satisfied that the purchase is fair and reasonable and is in the best interests of 
the City.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its 
City Council, having considered and been fully advised in the matter and good cause appearing 
therefore do hereby: 
 
1. Authorizes the city manager to execute a purchase agreement in substantially the 
same form as Attachment B with MP 1283 Willow LLC to purchase the property located 
at 1283 Willow Road in the amount of $3,633,000; 
 
2. Authorizes the city manager to accept a grant deed for the property located at 
1283 Willow Road; 
 
3. Authorizes the city manager to execute a use agreement in substantially the same 
form as Attachment C to permit MidPen Housing Corporation to use the property located 
at 1283 Willow Road for construction staging;  
 
4. Authorizes the city manager and city attorney to execute minor amendments to 
the Use Agreement and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the purchase 
of the property located at 1283 Willow Road and to permit MidPen Housing Corporation 
to use such property for construction phasing; and 
 
5. Appropriates $3,650,000 from general fund reserves for the purchase of the 
property located at 1283 Willow Road and related expenses. 
 
 
I, Judi A. Herren, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing City 
Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said City 
Council on the twenty-ninth day of October, 2019, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:  
  
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 

ATTACHMENT A

Page 32



Resolution No. 6523 
Page 2 of 2 
 

ABSTAIN:  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twenty-ninth day of October, 2019. 
 
 
  
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk 
 

Page 33



























1 
 

Addendum to Vacant Land Purchase Agreement and  
Joint Escrow Instructions dated September ___, 2019,  
by and between the City of Menlo Park, as “Seller,”  

and MP 1283 Willow, LLC, as “Buyer” 
 

39. Condition of Property. Paragraph 16 of this Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety 
and the following is inserted in lieu thereof: 

 
Buyer hereby acknowledges that the Property will be sold to Buyer “AS IS”, “WHERE 
IS” and “WITH ALL FAULTS”, including, but not limited to, both latent and patent 
defects and the existence of any hazardous materials, and there are no representations 
and/or warranties, express or implied, made by Seller in connection with the transaction 
contemplated by this Agreement.  Buyer acknowledges and agrees that (1) Buyer shall 
rely upon Buyer’s own due diligence in determining whether the Property is suitable for 
purchase by Buyer; (2) Buyer has been given a reasonable opportunity to inspect and 
investigate the Property and all aspects relating thereto, either independently or through 
agents and experts of Buyer’s choosing; (3) Buyer is acquiring the Property based 
exclusively upon Buyer’s own investigations and inspections thereof and is not relying on 
any representations and warranties of Seller. Buyer hereby waives its right to recover 
from, and forever releases and discharges Seller, Seller’s affiliates, members, directors, 
officers and their respective heirs, successors, personal representatives and assigns from 
any and all demands, claims (including, without limitation, causes of action in tort), legal 
or administrative proceedings, losses, liabilities, damages, penalties, fines, liens, 
judgments, costs or expenses whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees 
and costs), whether direct or indirect, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen 
(collectively, “Claims”), that may arise on account of or in any way be connected with 
the Property, the physical condition thereof, or any law or regulation applicable thereto 
and Buyer shall indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless from and against any and all 
Claims that may arise on account of or in any way be connected with the Property, the 
physical condition thereof, or any law or regulation applicable thereto.  

40. Buyer’s Investigation of Property and Matters Affecting Property. Paragraph 17 of 
this Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following is inserted in lieu thereof: 

Buyer acknowledges that Buyer is familiar with the condition of the Property and 
has had the opportunity to inspect the Property and investigate the suitability of 
the Property for Buyer’s intended use.  Buyer hereby unconditionally waives any 
further right to inspect the Property or to perform any tests or inspections and, 
upon acceptance of this Agreement by Buyer, Buyer acknowledges that approval 
of the condition of the Property shall not be a condition to Buyer’s performance 
under this Agreement.  

 
41. Time Periods; Removal of Contingencies; Cancellation Rights. Paragraph 19 of 
this Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following is inserted in lieu thereof: 

A. Seller has provided Buyer with a copy of a Preliminary Title Report for the 

Page 46



2 
 

Property prepared by Old Republic Title Company, dated as of August 9, 
2019, Order No. 1117017836-JM (“Title Report”), together with copies of 
the property documents listed on Exhibit A attached to this Addendum 
(collectively, “Property Documents”).  The Property Documents delivered by 
Seller to Buyer shall be delivered without any representation, warranty, or 
liability whatsoever by or on the part of Seller or the preparers of such studies 
and investigations, as to the accuracy, completeness, or utility of any such 
studies and investigations, and Buyer or any successor or assign of Buyer 
shall utilize and/or rely on the information contained in the Property 
Documents at Buyer’s or such successor’s or assign’s sole and absolute risk.  
Buyer acknowledges that Buyer has had the opportunity to review the 
Property Documents and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
in this Agreement, Buyer shall not have the right to cancel this Agreement as 
a result of any information contained in the Property Documents.   
 

B. As set forth in Section 17 above, Buyer is familiar with the Property and, upon 
acceptance of this Agreement by Buyer, Buyer shall proceed to close escrow 
within the time period set forth in Section 1 D above.  

42. Repairs. Paragraph 20 and 21 of this Agreement are hereby deleted in their entirety and 
the following is inserted in lieu thereof: 

The parties acknowledge that the Property is being sold to Buyer “AS IS”, 
“WHERE IS” and “WITH ALL FAULTS” as set forth in Section 16 above and 
Seller shall have no obligation to make any repairs or improvements to the 
Property in connection with Buyer’s acquisition of the Property under this 
Agreement.   

43. Brokers. Paragraph 24 of this Agreement is hereby deleted n its entirety and the 
following is inserted in lieu thereof:   

The parties acknowledge that neither Buyer nor Seller is represented by a real 
estate broker in connection with this transaction.  Seller and Buyer shall each 
indemnify, defend and hold the other harmless in connection with any broker’s 
commission or finder’s fee due or alleged to be due based upon the acts of the 
indemnifying party.  

44. Terms and Conditions of Offer.  . The first sentence of Section 34 of this Agreement is 
deleted and replaced with the following:  

This is an offer to sell the Property on the above terms and conditions. 

45. Acceptance. Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 36.A. of this Agreement, 
Seller and Buyer agree that for purposes of this Agreement, “Acceptance” of this Agreement 
shall mean the time of (i) the approval of this Agreement by the City Council of the City of 
Menlo Park, (ii) the full execution of this Agreement by Seller and Buyer, and (iii) the delivery 
of such fully executed Agreement to each of the parties. 

Page 47



3 
 

46. Representative Capacity.  Buyer acknowledges that Jan Lindenthal has executed this 
Agreement on behalf of Buyer in her representative capacity as Buyer’s Chief Real Estate 
Development Officer. 

47. Use of Property Post Closing. Buyer hereby grants to Seller a temporary right to use 
the Property after the Close of Escrow (“Temporary Use”) as a staging area for the storage of 
construction materials and modular components and containers in connection with the 
construction of Seller’s Gateway Apartments project located at 1345 Willow Street in Menlo 
Park (“Adjacent Project”).  The Temporary Use shall commence upon not less than thirty (30) 
days written notice to Buyer that Seller intends to commence construction of the Adjacent 
Project.  Within such thirty (30) day period, the parties shall enter into a Property Use Agreement 
in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B to evidence the terms and conditions of the 
Temporary Use. 

 
In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Addendum One to Vacant Land Purchase 
Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions as of the date set forth hereinabove. 
 
 
Buyer 
 
City of Menlo Park, a municipal  
corporation of the State of California 
 
By:__________________________ 
 
Its:__________________________ 

Seller 
 
MP 1283 Willow LLC, a California  
limited liability company 

 
By:  Mid-Peninsula Half Moon Bay, Inc. 
        a California nonprofit public benefit 
        corporation 
Its Sole Member 
 
      By:  _________________________ 
      Name: Jan M. Lindenthal 
      Its:  Assistant Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

Page 48



4 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

List of Property Documents 
 

[To Be Attached] 
 
 

  

Page 49



5 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Form of Property Use Agreement 
 

[To Be Attached] 
 
 

Page 50



Exhibit A: Property Documents to 

Addendum to Vacant Land Purchase Agreement 

 

Restricted Appraisal of Real Property dated May 25, 2019 

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment dated April 21, 2016 

Limited Phase II Subsurface Investigation dated April 12, 2016 

ALTA Survey dated March 8, 2016 

Soil Disposal Evaluation Letter from AEI Consultants dated April 22, 2016 

Site Management Plan revised January 24, 2017 

Preliminary Title Report dated August 9, 2019 

MidPen’s Conceptual Design Studies 

 

Page 51



1 
 

PROPERTY USE AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS PROPERTY USE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made this _____ day of 
________________, 2020 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF MENLO 
PARK, a municipal corporation of the State of California (“City”), and MIDPEN 
HOUSING CORPORATION, a California non-profit public benefit corporation 
(“Developer”). 
 

Recitals 
 
 A. The City is the owner of that certain real property located at 1283 Willow 
Road in Menlo Park, California, which is more particularly described on Exhibit A 
attached hereto (“Property”).   
 
 B. Developer desires to use a portion of the Property as a staging area for 
the storage of construction materials and modular components and containers in 
connection with the construction of Developer’s Gateway Apartments project located at 
1345 Willow Road in Menlo Park (“Adjacent Project”).  
 
 C. The Property is vacant and available for the proposed use hereunder for 
the period of Developer’s proposed use.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, City and Developer agree as follows: 
 
 1. Grant of Use.  City hereby grants to Developer a temporary right to use a 
portion of the Property, generally described as the existing fenced area on the Property 
and as more particularly shown on Exhibit A-1 attached hereto (“Staging Area”), for a 
staging area for the Adjacent Project for the period set forth below (collectively, 
“Temporary Use”).   
 
 2. Duration of Temporary Use.  Developer shall have the right to exclusive 
use of the Staging Area for a staging area for a period of three (3) years after the 
Effective Date (“Initial Term”).  To the extent necessary to complete the Adjacent 
Project, Developer shall have the right to extend the Initial Term for a period of up to 
one (1) year upon written notice to City delivered not less than ninety (90) days prior to 
expiration of the Initial Term. 
 
 3. Condition of Staging Area. 
 
  a. Developer shall at all times maintain the Staging Area in a neat and 
orderly fashion, minimize any dust (by watering, if necessary) and noise, prevent any 
hazardous and/or toxic substances from being place, stored, or used on the Staging 
Area, and shall remove any and all garbage and/or debris placed onto the Staging Area.   
 

ATTACHMENT C

Page 52



2 
 

  b. In consideration for use of the Staging Area, Developer will remove 
all weeds on the Property and adjacent sidewalks. 
 

c. During the term of this Agreement, Developer shall, at its sole cost 
and expense, maintain the fencing located on the Staging Area. 
 
  d. Developer shall restore and return the Staging Area to City, at no 
expense to City, in the same condition it was received by Developer except as provided 
in subsection b above. 
 

e. Developer expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Staging 
Area is being made available for Developer’s use “as is”, that is, in its present condition, 
and that City makes no warranties or representations whatsoever regarding the 
condition of the Staging Area or its suitability for such use. 
 

f. The City shall bear no responsibility or risk of loss of any kind for 
any personal property, equipment or construction materials stored or used by Developer 
on the Staging Area. 
 
 4.  City Right of Entry.  City, and its agents, officers, employees, and 
contractors (collectively, “City Parties”) shall have the right to enter the Staging Area 
upon not less than two (2) business days’ notice to Developer for the purpose of 
conducting and performing inspections, surveys, testing and other reasonable 
investigations (collectively, “Tests”); provided that such Tests shall not unreasonably 
disrupt Developer’s use of the Staging Area.  The City shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless Developer and its officers, employees and agents against any costs, loss, 
damages, liability, claims and/or expenses arising out of or resulting in any way from the 
entry onto the Staging Area by the City Parties pursuant to this Section.   
 

5. Assignment.  Developer may, upon written notice to City, assign its rights 
and delegate its duties hereunder to any subsidiary or other entity either wholly or jointly 
controlled by or under common control (through its board of directors) with Developer, 
provided such assignment shall not relieve Developer of its duties and obligations 
hereunder.  This Agreement is made and entered into solely for the benefit of the City 
and Developer, and no other third person shall have any rights under this Agreement. 
 
 6. No Agent.  Developer does not become an agent or employee of the City 
by virtue of this Agreement and/or the Temporary Use, and the parties expressly agree 
that no agency or employment relationship is created by this Agreement. 
 
 7. Insurance.  Developer agrees to have and maintain the policies set forth in 
the attached Exhibit B, entitled “Insurance Requirements”.  All policies, endorsements, 
certificates and/or binders shall be subject to approval by the City as to form and 
content.  Developer agrees to provide City with a copy of all the policies, certificates 
and/or endorsements before Developer’s use of the Staging Area commences under 
this Agreement. 

Page 53



3 
 

 
 8. Indemnification.  Developer shall indemnify, defend and hold City, and its 
agents, officers, and employees, harmless from and against any and all costs, loss, 
damages, claims, liability and/or expenses, including defense costs, legal fees and 
attorneys' fees, and claims for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, but not 
limited to, bodily injury, death, personal injury or property damage, including equipment 
and vehicles, arising in any manner from or in connection with Developer’s use and 
occupancy of the Staging Area, and access to and from the Staging Area, except for 
costs, loss, damages, liability, claims and/or expenses solely resulting from the 
negligence or misconduct of the indemnified party, its agents, officers and/or 
employees. 
 
 9. Termination. If Developer violates any of the terms and conditions set forth 
in this Agreement, City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon not less 
than seven (7) days written notice from City to Developer. If the City terminates this 
Agreement, Developer agrees to cause all of its agents, officers and employees to 
immediately vacate the Staging Area and to remove all equipment and/or other property 
belonging to Developer, its agents, officers and/or employees from the Staging Area 
and to restore the Staging Area to the condition required hereunder.  
 
 10. Notices.  All notices and other communications required or permitted to be 
given under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be delivered by hand, by 
electronic mail or facsimile transmission with verification of receipt, or by United States 
mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the respective parties 
as follows: 
 
If to City:  City of Menlo Park 
   701 Laurel Street  
   Menlo Park, CA  94025 
   Attn: City Manager 
  
If to Developer MidPen Housing Corporation  
   303 Vintage Park Drive, Suite 250  
   Foster City, CA 94404 
   Attn: Nevada Merriman 
 
or to such other address as any party may designate by notice in accordance with this 
Section. 
 
Notice shall be deemed effective on the date delivered or, if appropriate, on the date 
delivery is refused. 
 
 11. Nondiscrimination.  Developer shall not discriminate, in any way, against 
or grant preferential treatment to any person on the basis of race, sex, color, age, 
religion, creed, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, ethnicity, ancestry, or 
national origin in the use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the Staging Area. 

Page 54



4 
 

 
 12. Governing Law.  City and Developer agree that the law governing this 
Agreement shall be that of the State of California.  
 
 13. Venue.  If a lawsuit shall be brought by either party hereunder, the parties 
agree that trial of such action shall be exclusively vested in a state court in the County 
of San Mateo or, where appropriate, in the United States District Court for the Northern 
District of California, San Jose, California.  
 
 14. Severability.  If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this 
Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any extent 
be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the 
remainder of the terms, covenants, conditions or provisions of this Agreement, or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall remain in full force and effect 
and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.  
 
 15. Exhibits.  All attached exhibits are incorporated into this Agreement. 
 
 16. Additional Reasonable Conditions.  Nothing herein shall prevent City from 
imposing additional reasonable conditions on Developer's use of the Staging Area.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this instrument the day and 
year first above written.  
 
Buyer 
 
City of Menlo Park, a municipal  
corporation of the State of California 
 
By:__________________________ 
 
Its:__________________________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By: _______________________ 
      William L. McClure, 
       City Attorney 

Seller 
 
MidPen Housing Corporation, 
a California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation 
 
      By:  _________________________ 
      Name: Jan M. Lindenthal 
      Its:  _______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 
6-Attachment C - 19-1004 Property Use AgreementPage 1 of 1 EXHIBIT A 
10/17/2019 

EXHIBIT A and A-1 
 

PROPERTY 
 

Survey and Legal Description of the Property attached. 
 

STAGING AREA 
 

The existing fenced area on the Property, shown by the delineated Chain Link Fence on 
Survey page 2 attached hereto.   

Page 56



 
 Page 1 of 1 EXHIBIT B 
10/17/2019 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
[City’s Insurance Requirements - To Be Attached] 

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



1 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
Developer shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from, or 
in connection with, the use of the Property hereunder by the Developer, its agents, 
representatives, employees or subcontractors. 
 
1. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 
 Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
 

a. The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Commercial General 
Liability coverage ("occurrence") Form Number CG 0001, Fire Legal Liability; 
and  

 
b. The coverage provided for all non-owned and hired automobiles through 

endorsement to Commercial General Liability coverage; and  
 

c. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State 
of California and Employers Liability insurance; and 

 
d. Property Insurance against all risks of loss to any improvements or 

betterments, Developer’s furniture, fixtures, stock and equipment, including 
fixtures, improvements and betterments installed by Developer on the 
Property. 

 
There shall be no endorsement reducing the scope of coverage required above unless 
approved by the Administrative Services Director City’s Risk Manager. 

 
2. Minimum Limits of Insurance 
 
 Developer shall maintain limits no less than: 
 
 a. Commercial General Liability:  $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage; $1,000,000 Fire Legal Liability; and 
 
b. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for 

bodily injury and property damage for non-owned and hired automobiles 
through endorsement to Commercial General Liability Coverage. 

 
c. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability: Workers’ Compensation 

limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of California and 
Employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident; and 

Page 60



2 
 
 

 
d. Property Insurance:  90% replacement cost with no coinsurance penalty 

provision. 
 

3. Other Insurance Provisions 
 
 The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 

a. General Liability Coverages: 
 

(i) The City of Menlo Park, its officials, employees, agents and 
contractors are to be covered as additional insureds as respects: 
liability arising out of activities performed by, or on behalf of, 
Developer; products and completed operations of Developer; 
premises owned, leased or used by Developer; or automobiles 
owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Developer. The coverage 
shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to City, their officials, employees, agents and contractors. 

 
(ii) Developer’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as 

respects the City, its officials, employees, agents and contractors. 
Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City, its officials, 
employees, agents or contractors shall be excess of Developer’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
(iii) Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall 

not affect coverage provided City, its officials, employees, agents, 
or contractors. 

 
(iv) Coverage shall state that Developer’s insurance shall apply 

separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is 
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 

 
(v) Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of the City of 

Menlo Park, its officers, employees, agents and contractors 
 

(vi) Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability 
 Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of the City of 

Menlo Park, its officers, employees, agents and contractors 
 

b. All Coverages 
 

Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed to state that 
coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, or reduced in limits except 
after thirty (30) days' prior written notice has been given to City of Menlo Park, 

Page 61



3 
 
 

except that ten (10) days’ prior written notice shall apply in the event of 
cancellation for non-payment of premium. 

 
5. Acceptability of Insurance 
 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers acceptable to the Administrative Services 
Director City’s Risk Manager. It is acknowledged that Developer’s current insurer 
Lexington Insurance Company shall be acceptable subject to the coverage terms 
of the applicable policies being compliant with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
6. Verification of Coverage 
 

Developer shall furnish City with certificates of insurance and with original 
endorsements affecting coverage required by this clause. The certificates and 
endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized 
by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
Proof of insurance shall be either emailed in pdf format 
to: LDDiaz@menlopark.org ________________.gov, or mailed to the following 
postal address (or any subsequent email or postal address as may be directed in 
writing by the Administrative Services Director Risk Manager): 

 
City of Menlo Park 
701 Laurel Street  
Menlo Park, CA  94025 
Attn: Administrative Services Director 

______________________ 
 
7. Subcontractors 
 

Developer shall ensure that its contractors and subcontractors maintain 
insurance in compliance with the requirements set forth herein. 

 
 
 

Page 62





THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 64





Staff Report #: 19-220-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

As shown in Table 1, the fair value of the City’s securities was $643,232 greater than the amortized cost as 
of September 30. The difference between amortized cost and fair value is referred to as an unrealized loss 
or gain, and is due to market values fluctuating from one period to another. It is important to note that any 
unrealized loss or gain does not represent an actual cash transaction to the City, as the City generally holds 
securities to maturity to avoid market risk.  
 
The consolidated portfolio report for the quarter ending September 30, is included as Attachment A and 
each component is described in greater detail below. 
 
LAIF  
As previously shown in Table 1, 41 percent of the portfolio resides in the City’s account at the LAIF, a liquid 
fund managed by the California State Treasurer, yielding 2.28 percent for the quarter ended September 30. 
LAIF yields had been at historic lows for several recent years but the last three years have shown a small 
but steady trend upward before recently levelling off. Due to the liquidity of LAIF and based on uncertainty 
surrounding rates for longer-term securities, the City has kept a large number of funds in LAIF in recent 
years. However, the City does invest excess funds in other types of securities in an effort to provide 
diversification and guarantee rates from longer-duration investments.  
 
Securities portfolio  
As of September 30, the City held a number of securities in corporate bonds, government agency notes and 
government bonds and reflect a diversified mix in terms of type but all at low risk. Insight Investment serves 
as the City’s financial adviser on security investments and makes recommended trades of securities, 
purchase and sale that align market conditions to the City Council adopted investment policy to the greatest 
extent possible. The Insight Investments quarterly statement for the period ended September 30, is 
provided in Attachment B. As shown on the quarterly statement, the return for the period ended September 
30, on an amortized cost basis, was 0.53 percent. The positions the City held as of September 30, are 
included in Attachment C. 
 
Performance comparison 
As specified in the City’s investment policy, the performance of the portfolio is measured against the 
benchmark of a similar-length treasury bond. In the quarter ending September 30, 2019, the City’s portfolio 
returned a weighted average of 2.21 percent with non-LAIF funds having a weighted average maturity of 
1.92 years. The trailing 18-month period for a two-year Treasury note saw a yield of 2.37 percent, or 0.16 
higher than the City’s portfolio performance. It is important to note, however that the falling rate climate 
allowed the City to purchase longer duration positions, which are intended to result in higher yields in future 
periods. 
 

Impact on City Resources 
Due to the liquidity of LAIF accounts, the City has more than sufficient funds available to meet its 
expenditure requirements for the next six months. 

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 
 
 
 

Page 66



Staff Report #: 19-220-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Insight Investments consolidated portfolio report for the quarter ended September 30 
B. Hyperlink – Insight Investments advised funds quarterly report for the quarter ended September 30: 

menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/23236/Att-B---Insight-Investments-quarterly-report-as-of-9-30-19 
C. Hyperlink – Securities positions held by the City of Menlo Park as of September 30: 

menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/23237/Att-C-9-30-19-positions 
 
Report prepared by: 
Dan Jacobson, Finance and Budget Manager 

Page 67



City Managed Assets % Return

LAIF 65,000,000$                  41.4% 2.28%

Total Internally Managed 65,000,000$                  41.4%

Weighted Average Yield 2.28%

Days

Effective Average Duration - Internal 1

Weighted Average Maturity - Internal 1

Advisor Managed Assets % Return

Treasury Securities 14,004,938$                  8.9% 1.95%

Instrumentality Securities 47,556,264$                  30.3% 2.13%

Corporate Bonds 30,302,658$                  19.3% 2.28%

Total Externally Managed 91,863,861$                  58.6%

Weighted Average Yield 2.15%

Years

Effective Average Duration - External 1.82

Weighted Average Maturity - External 1.92

Total Portfolio Assets % Return

LAIF 65,000,000$                  41.4% 2.28%

Treasury Securities 14,004,938$                  8.9% 1.95%

Instrumentality Securities 47,556,264$                  30.3% 2.13%

Corporate Bonds 30,302,658$                  19.3% 2.28%

Total Portfolio Assets 156,863,861$               

Weighted Average Yield 2.21%

Years

Effective Average Duration - Total 1.07

Weighted Average Maturity - Total 1.13

Portfolio Change 

Beginning Balance

Ending Balance

Yield Comparison 2-Year Treasury 2-Year Treasury (18 Month Trailing)

1.65% 2.37%

* Note: All data for external assets was provided by the client and is believed to be accurate.  

Insight Investment does not manage the external assets and this report is provided for the client's use.

Market values are presented.

156,863,861$                                                

154,477,139$                                                

Quarterly Consolidated Portfolio Report

September 30, 2019

City of Menlo Park

LAIF, 41.4%

Treasury 
Securities, 8.9%

Instrumentality 
Securities, 30.3%

Corporate 
Bonds, 19.3%

LAIF
42%

Treasury 
Securities

9%

Instrumentality 
Securities

30%

Corporate Bonds
19%

ATTACHMENT A

Page 68













Staff Report #: 19-219-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
Impact on City Resources 
There is no impact on City resources.  
 

Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting.  
 

Attachments 
None. 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Brandon Cortez, Management Analyst I 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Dan Jacobson, Finance and Budget Manager 
 
Report approved by:  
Lenka Diaz, Administrative Services Director 

Page 74







Staff Report #: 19-222-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

The speed humps, having been installed with asphalt concrete with their associated pavement markings 
and traffic signs, would have no change if they are approved to remain permanent.  
 
The temporary gateway structures installed for the six-month trial period were concrete planter boxes with 
reflective tapes. Only two of the four planter boxes remain. One planter box near Santa Cruz Avenue was 
hit by a vehicle while making the right turn from Santa Cruz Avenue to North Lemon Avenue. One planter 
box near Valparaiso Avenue was also destroyed during construction on North Lemon Avenue earlier this 
year. The permanent gateway structures that were originally proposed to be installed on North Lemon 
Avenue were similar to the gateway structures installed on University Drive at Middle Avenue and on 
Cambridge Avenue near El Camino Real (Attachment C.) The gateway has a built-in light fixture to improve 
visibility and would be solar-powered. The North Lemon Avenue residents expressed their agreement with 
this proposed permanent gateway structure.  
  
However, staff is concerned with the cost of the four gateway structures as originally identified outweighing 
the traffic calming benefit of the devices. As such, staff has suggested alternatives to the brick pillars to the 
residents on North Lemon Avenue, such as curb-protected tree wells also shown in Attachment D, which 
could provide a similar benefit with a lesser cost. Feedback received from the residents expressed 
continuing support for the brick pillars as the preferred device, and a secondary option of the tree well if 
brick pillars are not feasible.  
 
As such, staff recommends the following next steps if City Council approves the NTMP to be made 
permanent:  
• Remove two remaining concrete planters on North Lemon Avenue 
• Collect speed and volume data again three-months after planters removed 
• Pursue installation of gateway structures with a maximum $35,000 construction budget only if eight-fifth 

percentile speeds increase to more than 27 mph  
 
Staff would continue to work with residents to refine placement and design of the gateway structures if 
found to be necessary to maintain the speed reduction achieved in the trial NTMP program.  

 
Impact on City Resources 
The estimated cost for installing the four gateway structures as originally identified is $48,000. As described 
above, staff is concerned with the cost of the four gateway structures as originally identified outweighing the 
traffic calming benefit of the devices. Funds for construction of the improvements are budgeted in the 
transportation (minor) project included in the 2019-20 capital improvement program, with $35,000 available. 
Staff will continue to refine the design of the brick pillars within the allotted budget; if found not feasible 
within the available funds, the curb-protected tree wells will be explored.  

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment.  

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 

Page 77



Staff Report #: 19-222-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

hours prior to the meeting. Postcard notices of this meeting were also mailed to the residents on North 
Lemon Avenue. The postcard invited the residents so that they can learn about the results of the resident 
survey for permanent installation as well as provide input on the permanent installation. 

 
Attachments 
A. North Lemon Avenue traffic plan 
B. North Lemon Avenue survey for permanent installation 
C. Permanent neighborhood gateway structure 
D. Alternative permanent neighborhood gateway structure 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Rene Baile, Associate Transportation Engineer 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Nicole Nagaya, Interim Public Works Director 

Page 78







City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

2 

then review the Commission’s recommendation and decide to either deny or approve 

the permanent establishment of measures. Based on the Council’s decision, the 

traffic management measures on North Lemon Avenue between Valparaiso Avenue 
and Santa Cruz Avenue will be either removed or remain permanently. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please contact me at 650-330-6770 
or visit the webpage below (Attachment A).   

Sincerely, 

Rene C. Baile  
Associate Transportation Engineer 

Attachments: 
A. City’s Neighborhood Traffic Management Program web page: 

www.menlopark.org/documentcenter/view/300 
B. Resident Survey 

Page 81



RESIDENT SURVEY FOR PERMANENT INSTALLATION  
NORTH LEMON AVENUE TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN MEASURES 

 
As stated in the enclosed cover letter, the City of Menlo Park is taking a survey to determine whether the 
residents consider the North Lemon Avenue traffic management plan measures to be successful and wish 
them to remain or be installed on a permanent basis.  
 
Results of the “After” studies for the traffic speeds and volumes and comparisons with the “Before” studies 
are shown on the table below. The 85th Percentile speed is the speed at or below which 85 percent of traffic 
is moving.  
 
 Before Studies After Studies Difference 
 Direction of Traffic Direction of Traffic Direction of Traffic 
 NB SB NB SB NB SB 
85 Percentile Speeds (mph) 30 30 24 25 -6 -5 
Mean Speeds (mph) 25 25 19 20 -6 -5 
Volumes (veh/day) 775 505 425 310 -350 -195 

 
You may return your completed survey by using the self-addressed envelope or by dropping it off at the 
front desk at City Hall.  We would appreciate receiving your response by Friday, July 26, 2019. (Please 
check one response) 

 
Do you support the North Lemon Avenue Traffic Management Plan Measures to remain or be 

installed on a permanent basis? 
 

  Yes, I support the plan measures to remain or be installed on a permanent basis. 
 

  No, I do not support the plan measures to remain or be installed on a permanent basis. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to respond to this survey for trial installation. Please provide your name and 
address in the spaces below – only one signature per household or business. (Identities of individuals 
responding to this survey will remain confidential in the City’s processing of the returns). 

 
Name:                                                                                Date:                                                                                                                                      

 
I am resident or property owner at (address):                                                                                                

 
                                                                                                                                                    
 

E-mail Address (optional):                        
 

Tel. No. (optional):                                                                                                                                           
 

If you have any questions regarding this, please contact Rene Baile, Associate Transportation Engineer. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

Rene C. Baile, P.E. 
Associate Transportation Engineer 
 

Page 82









Staff Report #: 19-217-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

complete by the end of 2019. 
 
In addition to the development of a recycled water facility at the SHGCC, which is located in the upper zone 
of the MPMW’s service area, there is an identified need for recycled water services in the lower zone. 
Growth, particularly in the lower zone’s Bayfront zoning area, is expected to increase the future demand for 
water.  
 
In February, WBSD completed the Bayfront Recycled water facilities plan (Bayfront RWFP) (Attachment B.) 
The report performed additional market assessment, studied recycled water treatment requirements, 
evaluated potential project alternatives, and identified a recommended project. The proposed project would 
divert wastewater from the 36-inch sewer pipeline near the intersection of Bayfront Expressway and Marsh 
Road and pump the wastewater to the Bayfront satellite treatment facility located at former wastewater 
treatment plant at the end of Marsh Road (Attachment D.) The new treatment facility would include grit 
removal and fine screening, biological reactor tanks, membrane bioreactor treatment system, and ultraviolet 
disinfection. The product water would be stored in a recycled water tank and a distribution pump station 
would be used to deliver recycled water to customers in the Bayfront area for irrigation, cooling towers and 
other non-potable, indoor uses. 
 
The report also identified the City of Menlo Park as a potential water purveyor, however, acknowledges that 
if the City declined that WBSD could perform this role. This would result in an agreement similar to that 
which was executed between the City and WBSD in the upper zone for the facility located at the SHGCC.  

 
Analysis 
California Water Code §13575, et seq., the Water Recycling Act of 1991 (Recycling Act) requires that water 
purveyors, such as MPMW, identify potential uses for recycled water and potential recycled water 
customers within their service areas. As part of this requirement, and to help offset potential future shortfalls 
in water supply, the MPMW evaluated the feasibility of developing a recycled water program as part of the 
water system master plan (WSMP.) The WSMP identified potential areas that can be served with recycled 
water and the feasibility of acquiring recycled water from the cities of Redwood City and Palo Alto. The 
WSMP also identifies the potential construction of a new facility to deliver recycled water. The water code 
also states that if recycled water requests from customers within the MPMW service area boundary cannot 
be met in a reasonable time frame, MPMW can delegate these rights to a recycled water producer. 
 
Water Code Section §1210 states that the waste water treatment plant (WWTP) owner shall hold the 
exclusive right to the treated wastewater. Under the proposed project, WBSD would curtail the sewer flow 
diverted to SVCW by up to 0.4 million gallons per day  
 
In May, at the request of City staff, WBSD provided options for purveying recycled water in the Bayfront 
area as listed below: 
 
Option 1: MPMW purveyorship 
• MPMW could be the recycled water purveyor for transmission and distribution in the Bayfront area and 

charge connection fees, meter fees, and usage fees to each individual customer. MPMW would be 
responsible for billing and collection from customers. 

• MPMW would pay WBSD as a wholesaler for recycled water metered as it leaves the WWTP. The City 
would be responsible to maintain the transmission lines, service lines, and meters to customers 
throughout the MPMW service area. 

Option 2: WBSD purveyorship 

Page 86



Staff Report #: 19-217-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

• WBSD could be the recycled water purveyor for the Bayfront area and charge connection fees, meter 
fees, and usage fees to each individual customer. WBSD would be responsible for billing and collection 
from customers. 

• WBSD would be responsible to maintain the transmission lines, service lines, and meters to customers 
throughout the MPMW service area. 

 
Option 3: Shared MPMW and WBSD purveyorship 
• MPMW could be the recycled water purveyor for retailing while WBSD retain ownership of transmission 

lines and service lines. MPMW would be responsible for billing and collection from customers only 
passing through costs from WBSD. 

• WBSD would own and maintain the transmission and services lines through the Bayfront area.  
• MPMW would own the metered connection between WBSD and the customer and would act as the 

retailer of the recycled water.  
 
Regionally, it is uncommon for agencies who act as a water utility, but not as either the sanitary sewer 
collection or wastewater treatment agency to act as purveyors of recycled water. A listing of how other 
communities are wholesaling and retailing recycled water in the Bay Area is included in Attachment C. The 
MPMW would realize additional risk in retailing when no control is present in the quality or reliability of the 
recycled water being delivered. 
 
An additional 2.7-mile distribution system in the Bayfront area, if operated and maintained by the City, would 
require additional personnel in the maintenance division of the City which would increase as the system 
expands. While there would be realized revenue decreases from selling a reduced volume of potable water, 
the quantity of potable water customers and physical infrastructure requiring maintenance would remain 
constant.  
 
Similarly, a new distribution system would require engineering support in preparing reports that are required 
by the State, development of standards, and capital planning separate from work done on the potable 
system which would remain constant. Should the City elect to act as the water purveyor for recycled water, 
these personnel demands on both the maintenance and engineering divisions would require further study.  
 
Based on the information provided by WBSD and City staff assessing the operation, maintenance and 
infrastructure requirements for the development of a recycled water distribution system to serve the 
Bayfront Area, it is not recommend at this time that the City become a recycled water purveyor. It is 
recommended to proceed with Option 2, similar to the SHGCC, to delegate rights to WBSD to serve the 
MPMW service area in the Bayfront Area.  
 
Next steps 
• Staff will engage WBSD in the development of an agreement 
• City Manager will negotiate an agreement for recycled water purveyorship option to delegate rights to 

serve recycled water in the Bayfront Area 
• The agreement will return to City Council for approval 

 

 
Impact on City Resources 

Page 87



Staff Report #: 19-217-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

The proposed project anticipates the usage of 220 acre feet per year (AFY) which would directly result in 
the decrease of potable water sales in an equivalent amount. In 2015, the MPMW adopted new water rates 
for the five years beginning in 2015 thru 2020. In 2020, the MPMW will complete a water rate study and 
propose new rates for the next five years. Estimated revenue losses and wholesale water purchases 
associated with the SHGCC and the proposed Bayfront recycled water facility will be accounted for as new 
rates are developed for City Council approval. Overall, The MPMW is expected to experience an increase in 
potable water sales associated with the projected growth and increased water demand within its service 
area, particularly from the Bayfront zoning area. 
 
Environmental Review 
WBSD will be the lead agency under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for this project, and will 
be preparing the required environmental review documents. This action to receive and file the plan, does 
not require environmental review as it is not a project under CEQA. This action is not a project within the 
meaning of the CEQA Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect 
physical change in the environment.  

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Hyperlink – staff report, May 3, 2016, authorize the city manager to execute an agreement with the 

WBSD regarding the provision of recycled water related to the SHGCC and other customers:  
menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/10125/H2---West-Bay-Agreement?bidId= 

B. Hyperlink – Bayfront RWFP final report: menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/23235/Attachment-B-to-
SR_WBSD-Bayfront-RWFP_Final_Rev1-002 

C. Recycled water retailing compilation table 
D. Map of recommended project, potential customers and facilities in the Bayfront Area 
 
Report prepared by: 
Fariborz Heydari, Senior Civil Engineer 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Chris Lamm, Assistant Public Works Director 
 

Page 88







West Bay Sanitary District
Bayfront Recycled Water Facilities Plan

Chapter 7
Recommended Project

FINAL

May 2019 42

Figure 17: Recommended Project, Potential Customers and Facilities

ATTACHMENT D

Page 91



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 92





Staff Report #: 19-223-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

It is important to note that the diversity of the Task Force and staff resulted in navigating personal opinions 
about sensitive topics such as property rights and community ethos to find middle ground solutions and 
finalize recommendations to the City Council. Task Force members included City Councilmember Combs, 
tree enthusiasts, a former Environmental Quality Commissioner (Scott Marshall,) developers, the 
executive director of a Canopy (a local nonprofit,) and past permit applicants and appellants. Many of the 
meetings were facilitated by Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center to allow for effective group participation 
while meeting project milestones and deadlines. The Task Force did work together to deliver 
recommendations to the City Council by summer 2019.  
 
City Council direction and consideration 
In July 2019, staff and Task Force recommendations were presented to the City Council (Attachment C.) 
The City Council agreed to proceed with the recommendations, and directed further community 
engagement be limited to review and feedback from the Task Force, Planning Commission, and 
Environmental Quality Commission between August and October before returning to City Council for final 
adoption of the amendments. In addition, the City Council expressed concern about the additional 
resources necessary to implement the recommended changes, which were estimated to cost between 
$185,000 to $200,000 per year. Staff was directed to explore reducing this annual cost, and has provided 
an analysis below that has reduced the estimated cost to $75,000-$120,000 per year. 
 
After a thorough policy analysis process and advice from the City Council, Task Force, Planning 
Commission and Environmental Quality Commission, the City Attorney’s Office has finalized amendments 
to the heritage tree ordinance in Attachment A for City Council adoption. If adopted, the ordinance would 
take effect July 1, 2020 to allow a six-month lead time for developing and executing an implementation 
plan.  

 
Analysis 
Summary of policy analysis  
The heritage tree ordinance update was separated into two policy analysis phases performed by 
HortScience | Bartlett Consulting:  
• Phase I (August 2018-February 2019) evaluated the effectiveness of the current ordinance and 

explored best practices or ideas from other communities. The Task Force considered the challenges 
with the current ordinance and ideas and best practices from other communities, and decided which 
would be explored deeper in the Phase II options analysis.  

• Phase II (December 2018-April 2019) evaluated the options from Phase I based on benefits, risks and 
impacts to city operations, permit applicant and the community. The Task Force selected three 
weighted criteria to identify the preferred option, which were increased clarity of the ordinance to permit 
applicants and the community (20 percent,) maintain or increase canopy (60 percent,) and improved 
effectiveness (20 percent.) 

 
Initially, the appeals process was identified as a problem area largely due to development projects 
receiving Planning Commission approval before the heritage tree appeal period. This resulted in costly 
appeals for the permit applicant for designing alternatives on a project that was already approved.  
 
However, through the course of the policy analysis, it was found that the decision-making criteria was the 
main contributor to conflicts and subjective interpretations of the ordinance. Unclear decision-making 
criteria was identified as the cause for most appeals from surveyed permit applicants, appellants and staff. 
Based on the City’s permit and appeal data over the last nine years, 80 percent of community member 
appeals where the tree was approved for removal and 75 percent of permit applicant appeals where tree 

Page 94



Staff Report #: 19-223-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

was not approved for removal resulted in upholding of the staff’s original decision. Only 20-25 percent of 
appeals resulted in a change of the city arborist’s decision. Considering the time and resources required 
by the City, permit applicants and appellants, it was identified that clearer and better decision making 
criteria for tree removal would likely reduce overall appeals and result in savings to the City, permit 
applicants and community members.  
 
Annually, an average of 700 heritage trees are approved for removal. The permit data that captures the 
reasons for granting removal was difficult to align with the current decision making criteria, which can 
contribute to confusion/frustration. The permit data showed that approved removals were largely broken 
down into four categories:  
• 56 percent were due to the condition of the tree, such as declining health or safety risk of the tree 
• 17 percent of removals had a combination of reasons or other circumstances beyond the criteria 
• 14 percent were related to development and construction 
• 13 percent were due to tree death 
 
One of the issues with the existing decision making criteria is basing removal decisions on the benefits of 
trees. The existence of the heritage tree ordinance already protects the benefits of trees by requiring a 
permit for removal. Including the benefits of trees in the removal decision making criteria complicates the 
process. The proposed intent for the new decision making criteria is make it clear when it is acceptable for 
a heritage tree to be removed and establish standards and thresholds for how death, condition, or 
feasibility of alternatives is determined.  
 
Another problem identified was enforcement of replacement plantings to maintain the urban canopy. A 
survey targeting community members who applied for a heritage tree removal permit within the last two 
years revealed that only 54 percent of respondents reported planting required replacement trees. 
 
Benefits and impacts of the ordinance amendments  
The amendments to the ordinance address many of the issues above and support monitoring the 
ordinance’s effectiveness over time. The expected benefits of the amendments in Attachment A include: 
• More replacement trees being planted and protected 
• Increased preservation of healthy heritage trees in development projects 
• Reduced number of appeals (and cost to city operations and permit applicants) 
• Reduced conflicts between community, staff and permit applicants  
• Increased public access to heritage tree removal permits and information 
 
However, the changes will also increase costs for development projects that include heritage tree 
removal(s) and non-development related tree removal applications. For development related projects, 
increases result from having to replace the value of the tree(s) if granted a removal, using a city approved 
certified arborist, and requiring additional alternatives and information to be submitted for some projects. 
However, this upfront work could assist in avoiding costly appeals.  
 
For non-development related removal requests, applicants will also be limited to using a city approved list 
of arborists and would be required to plant more trees than current standards. In addition, the permit fee 
for heritage tree removals are likely to increase to recover costs for replacement tree verification. It is 
difficult to assess the range of increases for the permit applicant as each tree, property and development 
project is unique, but this can be tracked and monitored for future reporting.  
 
 
 

Page 95



Staff Report #: 19-223-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Draft administrative guidelines (to be finalized by July 2020) 
Draft administrative guidelines have been developed to help supplement the implementation of the 
ordinance (Attachment D.) The ordinance language in Attachment A is intended to be a longstanding 
policy document while the administrative guidelines (Attachment E) will support day-to-day implementation 
practices, and can provide further clarification to new staff and community. 
 
Administrative guidelines are established at a staff level and can be readily updated by staff as necessary 
to reflect changes or institutionalize industry standards, operating practice or best practices. This approach 
provides flexibility in adapting implementation procedures as needed without necessitating a full ordinance 
update.  
 
Any amendments to the administrative guidelines would require a public review period of 30 days before 
implementing any changes. Public feedback may be considered by the public works director.  
 
The Task Force and the Environmental Quality Commission have reviewed the administrative guidelines 
and their feedback has been incorporated to the maximum extent possible to achieve the desired 
outcomes established for the project. The administrative guidelines will be finalized by the effective date of 
the ordinance July 1, 2020, and will be published for a 30-day public review.  
 
Repealing Chapter 16.65 Solar Access 
While performing the policy analysis of the current heritage tree ordinance, it was determined that a 
separate municipal code regarding solar access (Chapter 16.65) did not align with the California State 
Solar Shade Control Act, and needs to be repealed or removed to be in compliance. Thus, staff is 
recommending repeal of the solar access code.  
 
Cost to implement changes 
In July, staff estimated the recommended changes would require an additional $185,000 to $200,000 per 
year. This is largely due to the inspection and enforcement of replacement trees. Based on City Council, 
commissions and Task Force feedback, the cost to implement the ordinance has been reduced to $75,000 
to $120,000 per year. The reduced cost is largely due to the City Council’s direction to continue using the 
Environmental Quality Commission as the appeal hearing body rather than establishing a new heritage 
tree board. Other cost savings measures include reduced appeals due to clearer decision criteria for tree 
removals and using existing tree tracking software to verify tree replacements.  
 
Recovering increased implementation cost would likely involve increasing the tree removal permit fee and 
using a portion of the proposed tree replacement funds derived from projects unable to plant the required 
amount of replacement trees. The general fund would also be evaluated for funding. 
 
Per the direction of City Council, staff explored hosting an app challenge to reduce staff resources for 
inspection and enforcement. See Attachment E for the analysis on the App Challenge and other options to 
reduce inspection costs. To meet the July 1, 2020 ordinance effective date, staff recommends exploring 
the following options over the next six months: 
 
1. Leveraging and exploring the use of the City’s new Accela permitting system that may have features 

that could support photographic verification of tree replacements. The new permitting system is 
expected to be deployed in the next month, and permit information may be made accessible to the 
public.  

2. If the Accela permitting system cannot support tree replacement verification, staff recommends 
exploring existing tree tracking software, such as Tree Plotter, where the permit applicant would be 
required to log evidence of tree replacements. Both Accela and other tree tracking systems may have 

Page 96



Staff Report #: 19-223-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

the ability to be accessed by the public.  
3. Working with a nonprofit to use community member volunteers to preform tree replacement 

verifications and help educate residents about keeping trees healthy. 
 

Community engagement 
Per the City Council’s direction, the proposed ordinance amendments were presented to the Planning 
Commission, the Task Force and the Environmental Quality Commission. Below is a summary of their 
advice to the City Council and how their advice was incorporated to the maximum extent possible in 
Attachment A and D. In general, the Task Force and commissions were supportive and recommended 
approval of the amendments.  
 
Planning Commission (August 2019): The Planning Commission advises the City Council to adopt the 
proposed ordinance amendments. However, they expressed concern over the removal of the building 
moratorium as an enforcement measure. This concern was addressed by including a stop work order 
provision that is more effective and regularly used to address development related violations.  
 
The Planning Commission was also concerned with the estimated increase to annual implementation cost, 
but supported the importance and value of a fully funded program. They provided ideas on obtaining 
additional revenue for the City Council to consider. 
 
Task Force (September 2019): The Task Force reviewed the draft ordinance language, and by a super 
majority vote advises the City Council to adopt the proposed amendments with the following modifications 
that have been incorporated into Attachment A: 
• Remove replacement tree example 
• Insert noticing requirements  
• Include the city’s obligation to collect data to monitor the effectiveness of the ordinance 
  
For the draft administrative guidelines, the Task Force proposed the following modifications that have 
been incorporated into Attachment D:  
• Increasing the threshold for evaluating feasible and reasonable alternatives 
• Limiting the list of invasive species 
 
Other members expressed concerns about allowing trees to be removed for solar power generation. Solar 
panel installation is considered a development project that would be subject to the same standards as all 
other developments or building projects with a heritage tree removal request under removal decision 
making criteria No. 5 (Attachment A.) It would require a permit applicant to explore feasible and 
reasonable alternatives to preserve a heritage tree if there is a desire to install solar panels on a building 
or site. If there is a feasible or reasonable alternative, the removal permit would not be granted. 
Attachment D includes specific criteria for evaluating solar power alternatives.  
 
Some Task Force members still have concerns or have offered further ideas for improving the ordinance 
that are beyond the scope of work identified by the City Council. Additional budget appropriations and 
reprioritizing of city projects may be needed if the scope is further expanded.  
 
Environmental Quality Commission (September 2019): The Environmental Quality Commission (EQC) 
reviewed the draft ordinance language and administrative guidelines, and advises the City Council to 
adopt the proposed amendments, and include a provision in the ordinance that does not allow final 
occupancy to be granted for development projects until evidence or inspection of replacement trees(s) has 
been completed. This has been incorporated into the administrative guidelines (Attachment D) because it 

Page 97



Staff Report #: 19-223-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

is considered an administrative function and may require changes over time.  
 
For the administrative guidelines, the EQC advised the following modifications to be incorporated: 
• For a permit or an appeal, the permit applicant may be required to pay for additional costs to process 

the permit/appeal that can include, but is not limited to: 
• Third party peer review of alternatives 
• Third party analysis of further alternatives 

• If an appeal is filed, the schematic design alternatives originally submitted may require additional and 
complete analysis that will be paid for by the permit applicant 

• The city reserves the right to hire a third-party review of alternatives that will be paid for by the permit 
applicant. 

• Include a public review/approval of changes to the administrative guidelines, such as an appointed 
body or City Council. 

 
These have been incorporated into Attachment E except for the public review being approved by an 
appointed body or City Council. Amendments to the administrative guidelines are intended to reflect 
current industry standard and/or best practices. A public review of 30 days with the authority for the public 
works director to address/evaluate public feedback provides efficient implementation of the administrative 
guidelines and supports City Council and other appointed bodies’ ability to complete annual work plan 
priorities.  
 
The EQC recognizes that the heritage tree ordinance is only one tool for protecting and growing the urban 
forest, and that there are many other tools and policies that could further enhance the urban canopy. The 
EQC advises that the City Council consider developing an urban forest master plan after adopting updates 
to the heritage tree ordinance. In particular, the urban forest master plan can start by focusing on 
collecting current canopy coverage information for the entire city, address community values around 
redwood trees and their changing future in this geographic area, address canopy inequities across the 
community, and understand the impacts of other city policies on the urban forest. 
 
Phase III ordinance implementation plan 
The scope of the Task Force was to update the ordinance. However, throughout the policy analysis 
process and community engagement, ideas related to process, education, monitoring, and implementation 
were captured in the policy analysis report, administrative guidelines outline and meeting minutes. 
 
The ordinance effective date will be July 1, 2020 due to the time and resources needed to ensure 
implementation processes, tools and education is in place.  
 
Upon adoption of the updated heritage tree ordinance, staff will begin implementation planning and 
development from January to June 2020, which includes but is not limited to: 
• Preparing inclusion of additional budget and resources for the 2020-2021 fiscal year budget 
• Developing a request for qualifications to provide permit applicants with a list of city approved arborists  
• Amending the master fee schedule to increase the heritage removal permit fee 
• Developing helpful guides and education material for permit applicants  
• Approving an agreement for conflict resolution/mediators 
• Establishing specific fines depending on type of violation  
• Developing permit application and appeal forms 

 
 

Page 98



Staff Report #: 19-223-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 

Impact on City Resources 

To implement the approved changes, city operational costs will increase. It is estimated that the costs will 
increase the heritage tree program budget up to $120,000 annually and will require additional staff or a 
mix of staff, nonprofit and consulting services.  
 

Environmental Review 
An analysis of impacts under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) will be performed before 
adoption of the final ordinance. As the purpose of the Task Force was to continue the level of tree canopy 
protection existing in the current ordinance while providing more clarity and better enforcement, staff 
anticipates the ordinance will be exempt from further CEQA review. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Attachments 
A. Draft Municipal Code Chapter 13.24 (Heritage Trees) 
B. Hyperlink – Current heritage tree ordinance: 

codepublishing.com/CA/MenloPark/#!/html/MenloPark13/MenloPark1324.html 
C. Hyperlink – July 16 City Council staff report: 

menlopark.org/DocumentCenter/View/22137/I2-20190716-Heritage-Tree-Ord-Update-CC 
D. Draft administrative guidelines applicable to heritage trees 
E. App challenge and tree replacement inspection options analysis  
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Candise Almendral, Sustainability Project Contractor 
Rebecca Lucky, Sustainability Manager 

Page 99



ORDINANCE NO. 1060 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13.24 [HERITAGE TREES] OF TITLE 13 [STREETS, 
SIDEWALKS AND UTILITIES] AND REPEALING CHAPTER 16.65 [SOLAR 
ACCESS] OF TITLE 16 [ZONING] 

The City Council of the City of Menlo Park does hereby ordain as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS.   
 

A. In August 2018, the City Council appointed a Heritage Tree Task Force (Task 
Force) to collaborate with staff to review and provide recommendations to update the Heritage 
Tree ordinance (ordinance); 

B. The Task Force finalized their recommendations to the City Council at the end of 
June 2019; 

 C.  On August 12, 2019, the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed updates 
to the Heritage Tree Ordinance and recommended approval;  
 

 D.   On September 12, 2019, the Task Force reviewed the draft ordinance language 
and administrative guidelines, and recommended approval;  

 
 E.   On September 18, 2019, the Environmental Quality Commission reviewed the 

draft ordinance language and administrative guidelines, and recommended approval;  
 
 F.  On October 29, 2019, the City Council reviewed the updated Heritage Tree 

ordinance; 
 
 G.   The City Council finds that the desired outcome of the ordinance update to 

ensure a significant and thriving population of large healthy trees in Menlo Park for public 
enjoyment and environmental sustainability while balancing property rights and implementation 
efficiency was achieved;  

 
 H.   City Council finds the ordinance update process evaluated current issues and 

successes with the existing ordinance and explored options based on evidence and best 
practices in other communities and industry experts; and 

 
 I.  The City Council finds that the preferred options where identified based on 

increasing clarity, increasing and maintaining canopy, and increasing effectiveness of ordinance 
implementation, and adopts the following amendments to the Heritage Tree Ordinance (13.24).  

 
SECTION 2. AMENDMENT OF CODE. Chapter 13.24 [Heritage Trees] of Title 13 [Streets, 
Sidewalks and Utilities] is hereby repealed and replaced with the following: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

Page 100



Ordinance No. 1060 
Page 2 of 8 

 
 

 
CHAPTER 13.24 

HERITAGE TREES 

Sections: 
13.24.010 Intent and purpose 

13.24.020 Definitions 

13.24.030 Maintenance and preservation of heritage trees 

13.24.040 Removal and major pruning of heritage trees prohibited 

13.24.050 Permits and decision making criteria for removal 

13.24.060 Appeals 

13.24.070 Establishment of heritage tree fund 

13.24.080 Administrative guidelines 

13.24.090 Heritage tree replacements 

13.24.100 Enforcement and violations 

13.24.110 Urban Forest Data Collection 

13.24.010 Intent and purpose. 

This chapter is adopted with the intent and purpose of promoting the preservation and 
development of a healthy, diverse tree canopy in Menlo Park, which is highly valued by the 
community and is vital to the character and health of the city.  

Heritage trees are valued for their many contributions to the environment, public health and 
quality of life of the Menlo Park community. Examples of those benefits include: 

• provide shade 

• enhance resilience to climate change 

• improve air quality 

• provide shelter from wind 

• prevent erosion and landslides 

• protect against flood hazards  

• add to the city’s scenic beauty and character 

• recognize historical significance to our city 

• create natural gathering places 

• reduce noise pollution 

• enhance privacy 

• enhance neighborhood property values 

Page 101



Ordinance No. 1060 
Page 3 of 8 

 
 

• provide habitat for wildlife 

This chapter establishes regulations for the removal and replacement of heritage trees, 
promotion of additional heritage tree planting, and public education about the planting, 
maintenance and preservation of healthy heritage trees following industry best management 
practices, and consistent with the purposes of this chapter, the reasonable enjoyment of public 
and private property, property rights and in alignment with the General Plan. 

13.24.020 Definitions. 

For purposes of this Chapter, the terms below shall have the following meanings: 

1. “Administrative guidelines” means staff-promulgated regulations implementing and 
interpreting this ordinance. 

2. “Applicant” is the person seeking a Permit to remove or perform major pruning on a heritage 
tree under this Chapter. 

2. “Major pruning” is the significant removal of roots or foliage that has the potential to 
negatively impact the health or structural stability of a heritage tree. Major pruning includes the 
removal of more than one-fourth of the live branches or roots within a twelve (12) month period. 

3. “Public Works Director” shall mean the Public Works Director or their designee, including but 
not limited to the City Arborist. 

4. “Heritage tree” shall mean:  

(A)    All trees other than oaks which have a trunk with a circumference of 47.1 inches (diameter 
of fifteen (15) inches) or more, measured fifty-four (54) inches above natural grade).  

(B)    An oak tree (Quercus) which is native to California and has a trunk with a circumference of 
31.4 inches (diameter of ten (10) inches) or more, measured at fifty-four (54) inches above 
natural grade. 

(C)    A tree or group of trees of historical significance, special character or community benefit, 
specifically designated by resolution of the city council. 

For purposes of Sections 13.24.020 (4) (A) and (B), trees with more than one trunk shall be 
measured at the diameter below the main union of all multi-trunk trees unless the union occurs 
below grade, in which case each stem shall be measured as a standalone tree. Multi-trunk trees 
under twelve (12) feet in height shall not be considered a heritage tree. 

13. 24.030 Maintenance and preservation of heritage trees.  

1. Any person who owns, controls, or has custody or possession of any real property within the 
city shall use reasonable efforts to maintain and preserve all heritage trees located thereon in a 
state of good health pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. Failure to do so shall constitute a 
violation of this chapter.  

2. Any person who conducts any grading, excavation, demolition or construction activity on 
property shall do so in such a manner as to not threaten the health or viability or cause the 
removal of any heritage tree.  

Page 102



Ordinance No. 1060 
Page 4 of 8 

 
 

3. Any work performed within an area ten (10) times the diameter of a heritage tree (i.e., the tree 
protection zone) shall require submittal and implementation of a tree protection plan for review 
and approval by the public works director or his or her designee prior to issuance of any permit 
for grading or construction. The tree protection plan shall be prepared by a City-approved 
certified arborist and shall address issues related to protective fencing and protective 
techniques to minimize impacts associated with grading, excavation, demolition and 
construction. The director of public works or his or her designee may impose conditions on any 
city permit to assure compliance with this section. 

13.24.040 Removal and major pruning of heritage trees prohibited.  

It is unlawful for any person to remove, or cause to be removed, any heritage tree from any 
parcel of property in the city, or perform major pruning on a heritage tree, without obtaining a 
permit; provided, that in case of emergency, when a heritage tree is imminently hazardous or 
dangerous to life or property, it may be removed by order of the police chief, fire chief, the public 
works director or their respective designees. Any person who vandalizes, grievously mutilates, 
destroys or unbalances a heritage tree without a permit or beyond the scope of an approved 
permit shall be in violation of this chapter. 

13.24.050 Permits and decision making criteria for tree removal.  

a. Permit Requirement and Removal Criteria. Any person desiring to remove one or more 
heritage trees or perform major pruning as described in Section 13.24.020 shall apply for a 
permit pursuant to procedures established by the public works director and shall pay a fee 
established by the city council. It is the joint responsibility of the property owner and party 
removing the heritage tree or trees, or portions thereof, to obtain the permit. The director of 
public works or his or her designee may only issue a permit for the removal or major pruning of 
a heritage tree if he or she determines there is good cause for such action. In determining 
whether there is good cause, the public works director shall give consideration to the following: 

1. Death. The heritage tree is dead. 

2. Risk Rating. The condition of the heritage tree poses a high or extreme risk rating under the 
International Society of Arboriculture Best Management Practices: Tree Risk Assessment 
and/or administrative guidelines; and the risk cannot be reasonably abated to a low risk rating 
with sound arboricultural treatments.  

3. Tree Health. The heritage tree is (a) dying or has a severe disease, pest infestation, 
intolerance to adverse site conditions, or other condition and pruning or other reasonable 
treatments based on current arboricultural standards will not restore the heritage tree to a fair, 
good or excellent health rating as defined in the Guide for Plant Appraisal, 10th Edition, or its 
successor manual or the administrative guidelines or (b) the heritage tree is likely to die within a 
year. 

4. Species. The heritage tree is a member of a species that has been designated as invasive or 
low species desirability by the public works director in the administrative guidelines.  

5. Development. The heritage tree interferes with proposed development, repair, alteration or 
improvement of a site or habitable building that is causing/contributing to structural damage 
(excluding amenities, such as walkways, patios, pools and fire pits); and there is no financially 
feasible and reasonable design alternative that would permit preservation of the heritage tree 

Page 103



Ordinance No. 1060 
Page 5 of 8 

 
 

while achieving the applicant’s reasonable development objectives or reasonable economic 
enjoyment of the property using the methodology established in the administrative guidelines.  

6. Utility Interference. The removal is requested by a utility, public transportation agency, or 
other governmental agency due to a health or safety risk resulting from the heritage tree’s 
interference with existing or planned public infrastructure and there is no financially feasible and 
reasonable design alternative that would permit preservation of the heritage tree.  

b. Notice Requirements. 

1. The City will use its best efforts to maintain a publicly accessible data base of permit 
applications. 

2. When a permit is sought under Criteria No. 5 (Development) or 6 (Utility), property owners 
within 300 feet of the exterior boundary of the property containing the Heritage Tree shall be 
noticed by email or mail of the pending application. Failure to receive copies of such notice shall 
not invalidate any action taken by the City. 

13.24.060 Appeals. 

1. Authority to appeal. Removals based on criteria 1 through 4 in section 13.24.050 may only be 
appealed by the permit applicant as set forth in section 13.24.060 (2) below. Removals based 
on criteria 5 and 6 may be appealed by the permit applicant or Menlo Park resident. Appeals 
must be filed on a city approved form and are subject to appeal fees. A permit shall not be 
issued until all appeals are completed and/or the time for filing an appeal has expired.  

2. Criteria 1-4 Appeals. Permit decisions based on criteria numbers 1, 2, 3 or 4 in section 
13.24.050 may only be appealed by the permit applicant. Such appeal must be filed within 
fifteen (15) days of the public works director’s written decision and must be in writing. The 
appeal shall be heard by the City Manager or designee whose decision shall be final.   

3. Criteria 5-6 Appeals. Notice of the public works director’s decision shall be mailed to all 
property owners within 300 feet of the exterior boundary of the property where the heritage tree 
is located. In addition, the applicant shall post a notice on a form supplied by the city on the 
property in a location visible to the public. 

A. Filing Appeal. Within (15) days of posting, the applicant or any person may appeal the 
public works director’s decision to the Environmental Quality Commission  

B. Review Period for decision making criteria number 5 and 6 of section 13.24.050. If the 
Permit is timely appealed, the appellant shall have an additional (15) days to review the project 
file and to submit written evidence to the city clerk relating to the appeal. The appellant may 
submit one to five reasonable and feasible alternatives for the permit applicant to explore. If 
either party would like the appeal body to review third-party expert evidence, such party shall 
submit the evidence to the city within the review period. No additional removal 
alternatives/concepts or third party expert testimony will be accepted for review by the 
Environmental Quality Commission or City Council after the end of the review period.  

C. Decision by Environmental Quality Commission. The Environmental Quality 
Commission shall consider the appeal. The Environmental Quality Commission may only 
consider removal alternatives/concepts and third party expert evidence submitted to the city 
during the review period. Within fifteen (15) days following the Environmental Quality 
Commission’s decision, the applicant or any other party to the appeal may appeal the 
Environmental Quality Commission’s decision to the City Council.   

Page 104



Ordinance No. 1060 
Page 6 of 8 

 
 

D. Planning Commission development related tree removals. When a removal permit is 
sought in conjunction with a project requiring Planning Commission review, the appeal to the 
Environmental Quality Commission, if any, should be completed before the Planning 
Commission takes final action on the development project.  

i. If the Environmental Quality Commission approves the heritage tree removal, such 
approval shall be conditioned upon final approval of the project by the Planning Commission or 
City Council, as applicable. Following the Environmental Quality Commission’s approval of the 
development related heritage tree removal, any appeal to the City Council is suspended until 
the Planning Commission acts. Once the Planning Commission makes a final decision on the 
overall development project that includes the heritage tree removal, any party to the 
Environmental Quality Commission appeal may appeal the heritage tree removal decision to the 
City Council. Such appeal shall be filed with the city clerk within fifteen (15) days of the Planning 
Commission’s decision. 

ii. If the Environmental Quality Commission denies the removal permit, the permit 
applicant may appeal the decision to the City Council before the Planning Commission reviews 
the related development project. If the applicant does not appeal the permit decision within 
fifteen (15) days of the Environmental Quality Commission’s decision, no appeal may be taken 
on the removal permit, and the development project shall be redesigned to include plans for 
retaining the heritage tree.  

E. Decision by City Council. The City Council shall consider the appeal. The City Council 
may only consider removal alternatives/concepts and third party expert evidence submitted to 
the city during the review period.   

5. Alternate appeal body. From time to time, the City Council may by resolution appoint a 
separate appellate body to hear Permit appeals in lieu of the Environmental Quality 
Commission. 

6. Re-submittal. If an applicant fails to exhaust the appeals set forth in this Chapter or the City 
Council denies the Permit, the Applicant may not apply for another Permit applicable to that 
heritage tree for a period of six months from the denial decision. 

13.24.070 Establishment of heritage tree fund. 

There is hereby established a heritage tree fund. This fund may be used to plant additional 
trees, to assist with implementation of the Heritage Tree Ordinance and any other purpose 
established by the administrative guidelines. 

13.24.080 Administrative guidelines. 

The public works director or their designee shall have the authority to adopt and modify 
administrative guidelines to implement this chapter. 

13.24.090 Tree replacements. 

1. If a permit for removal of a heritage tree is granted under Section 13.24.050, the applicant 
shall replace the heritage tree with a tree from a list of species approved by the City Arborist or 
pay a heritage tree in lieu fee in accordance with this section. 

2. For development related removals, the applicant shall provide replacement heritage trees on 
site in an amount equivalent to the appraised value of the removed heritage tree. The City 
Arborist shall approve the location, size, species and number of replacement heritage trees. If 
the appraised value of the removed heritage tree, exceeds the value of the replacement 

Page 105



Ordinance No. 1060 
Page 7 of 8 

 
 

heritage trees that can be accommodated on the property, the applicant shall pay the difference 
in value to the heritage tree fund.  

3. For non-development related removals, the applicant shall provide replacement heritage 
trees on site, with a tree from a list of species approved by the City Arborist, in an amount based 
on a replacement matrix based on trunk diameter as set forth in the administrative guidelines. If 
the property cannot accommodate all replacement trees on site, the applicant may pay an in lieu 
fee equivalent to the value of the replacement trees not planted on site. The in lieu fee shall be 
deposited into the heritage tree fund.   

13.24.100 Enforcement and Violations 

In addition to all other remedies set forth in this code or otherwise provided by law, the following 
remedies shall be available to the city for violation of this chapter: 

1. If a violation occurs during development, the city may issue a stop work order suspending 
and prohibiting further activity on the property pursuant to the grading, demolition, and/or 
building permit(s) (including construction, inspection, and issuance of certificates of occupancy) 
until a mitigation plan has been filed with and approved by the public works director and city 
attorney, agreed to in writing by the property owner(s), and either implemented or guaranteed 
by the posting of adequate security as determined by the city attorney.  

2. Any person violating this chapter shall be subject to a civil fine or penalty in the amount 
established by the City Council by resolution.  Civil fines or penalties collected under this 
chapter shall be deposited into the heritage tree fund. 

3.  The Code Enforcement Officer, Public Works Director and Building Official or designee are 
authorized to issue stop work orders, notices of violation, administrative penalties and citations 
under this chapter and/or pursuant to the administrative guidelines adopted by the Public Works 
Director. 

4.  Any citation or penalty received under this chapter may be appealed to the City Manager or 
designee whose determination shall be final. Such appeal must be filed within fifteen (15) days 
of receipt of the citation or penalty.  

5.  Whenever the amount of any administrative fine or penalty or administrative cost incurred by 
the city in connection with a violation of this chapter has not been satisfied in full within ninety 
days and/or has not been successfully challenged by a timely writ of mandate, this obligation 
may constitute a lien or, in the alternative, a special assessment against the real property on 
which the violation occurred. 

6. The City Attorney may bring a civil action against the violator to abate, enjoin, or otherwise 
compel the cessation of violation of any provision in this chapter. In a civil action brought 
pursuant to this chapter in which the City prevails, the court may award to the City all costs of 
investigation and preparation for trial, the costs of trial, reasonable expenses including overhead 
and administrative costs incurred in prosecuting the action, and reasonable attorney fees.  

7. The remedies provided in this section may be enforced against both the contractor or other 
person performing work in violation of this chapter as well as the owner of the real property on 
which the heritage tree is located. 

8. All remedies provided in this section shall be cumulative and are not exclusive.  

 
 

Page 106



Ordinance No. 1060 
Page 8 of 8 

 
 

13.24.110 Urban Forest Data Collection 
 
The City shall use its best efforts to collect and make publicly available data to monitor the 
effectiveness of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 3. REPEAL OF CODE. Chapter 16.65 [Solar Access] of Title 16 [Zoning] is hereby 
repealed in its entirety. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY.  If any section of this ordinance, or part hereof, is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction in a final judicial action to be void, voidable or unenforceable, such 
section, or part hereof, shall be deemed severable from the remaining sections of this ordinance 
and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining sections hereof. 

SECTION 5. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT DETERMINATION.  The City 
Council hereby finds that this ordinance is not subject to the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under Sections 15378 and 15061(b)(3) of the of the CEQA 
Guidelines.  The ordinance update is intended to continue the level of tree canopy protection 
existing in the current ordinance while providing more clarity and better enforcement, and has 
no potential for resulting in physical change to the environment either directly or indirectly.   

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLISHING.  This ordinance shall take effect July 1, 
2020.  The city clerk shall cause publication of the ordinance within 15 days after passage in a 
newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the city or, if none, by posting  in at 
least three public places in the city.  Within 15 days after the adoption of the ordinance 
amendment, a summary of the amendment shall be published with the names of the city 
councilmembers voting for and against the amendment.   

INTRODUCED on this twenty-ninth day of October, 2019. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED as an ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a regular meeting of said 
City Council on this __ day of ____, 2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
  
NOES:  
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
  
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Ray Mueller, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Judi A. Herren, City Clerk  
 

Page 107



1 
 

Administrative Guidelines Applicable to Heritage Trees 

Updated October 2, 2019 

[Note: These Guidelines are in draft form. It is anticipated they will be finalized and 
approved in June 2020.] 

These administrative guidelines are promulgated by the public works director or their designee 
pursuant to the authority set forth in Menlo Park Municipal Code Section 13.24.080. 

I. Intent and purpose. 

[Blank] 

II. Heritage tree defined. 

A. The public works director or their designee has determined the following species of oak trees 
are native to California: 

• Coast live oak (Quercus agrifolia) 

• Scrub oak (Quercus berberidifolia) 

• Canyon live oak (Quercus chrysolepis) 

• Blue oak (Quercus douglasii) 

• Leather oak (Quercus dumosa) 

• Englemann oak (Quercus englmannii) 

• Oregon white oak (Quercus garryanna) 

• Black oak (Quercus kellogii)  

• Valley oak (Quercus lobata) 

• Shreve oak (Quercus parvula var. shrevei) 

• Oracle oak (Quercus x morehus) 

• Island oak (Quercus tomentella) 

• Interior live oak (Quercus wislizenii) 

B. [Insert graphics or images to show how multi-stem trunk trees are measured.]  

C. As of August 19, 2019, the Council has not designated any trees under Menlo Park Municipal 
Code Section 13.24.020 (4)(C). 

III. Maintenance and preservation of heritage trees. 

A. For development projects, the appraised value of all heritage trees on site shall be submitted.  

IV. Removal and major pruning of heritage trees prohibited. 

[Blank] 

 

ATTACHMENT D

Page 108



2 
 

V. Permits and decision making criteria for removals. 

A. The decision making criteria described below are closely tied to industry standards and 
require the provision of evidence to demonstrate a heritage tree is: dead, dying or poses a 
significant risk; significantly restricts reasonable economic enjoyment of the property; or 
interferes with utilities.  

B. Prior to the issuance of a heritage tree removal permit, the public works director or their 
designee shall review the request and make a decision. The public works director or their 
designee may request relevant documentation from the applicant to determine whether removal 
is justified. The determination in granting or denying a permit shall in most instances be based 
on the articulated criteria in Municipal Code Section 13.24.050.  

C. Decision Making Criteria 

1. Death (Criterion 1). The public works director or their designee may request information 
to determine the tree is in fact dead. For example, photos of deciduous tree during fall or 
winter will not suffice. 

2. Risk Rating (Criterion 2) Considerations. 
• Tree risk assessment is a systematic process used to identify, analyze and evaluate tree 

risk.  Risk is assessed by categorizing or quantifying both the likelihood (probability) of 
occurrence and the severity of consequences. 

• Trees with moderate, high or extreme risk are required to have been evaluated by an 
International Society of Arboriculture (ISA) Qualified Tree Risk assessor and the 
assessed risk compared against given risk criteria to determine the significance of the 
risk. 
 
The following documentation may be used to support Criteria 2: 

o Evidence that the tree risk rating cannot be reduced to low (through pruning or 
other means), as reported by a Qualified Tree Risk Assessor. 
 

3. For Criterion 3 (Tree Health), intolerance to adverse site conditions can include factors 
such as soil or water salinity, exposure to sun or wind, or increasingly high temperatures.  

Tree health shall be determined by standards set by Table 4.1 of the Guide for Plant Appraisal, 
10th Edition, or its successor manual, and are as follows: 

• Excellent: High vigor and nearly perfect health with little or no twig dieback, 
discoloration, or defoliation. 

• Good: Vigor is normal for the species. No significant damage due to diseases or pests. 
Any twig dieback, defoliation, or discoloration is minor. 

• Fair: Reduced vigor, Damage due to insects or diseases may be significant and 
associated with defoliation but is not likely to be fatal. Twig dieback, defoliation, 
discoloration, and/or dead branches may comprise up to 50% of crown. 

• Poor: Unhealthy and declining in appearance. Poor vigor. Low foliage density and poor 
foliage color are present. Potentially fatal pest infestation. Extensive twig and/or branch 
dieback. 

• Very Poor: Poor vigor. Appears to be dying and in the last stages of life. Little live 
foliage. 
 

Page 109



3 
 

4. Species (Criterion 4).  The following trees have been designated by the public works 
director or their designee to be invasive/low desirability species: 

• Blackwood acacia  
• California fan palm 
• Glossy privet 
• Mexican fan palm 
• Myoporum 
• Purple leaf plum 
• Tree of heaven 
• Other species with overall desirability of five (5) as defined in the Western Chapter 

International Society of Arboriculture: Species Classification and Group Assignment, 
2004, or the most current edition.  

 
5. Development (Criterion 5).  

The following documentation may be required to support criterion 5: 

• Schematic diagrams that demonstrate the feasibility/livability of alternative design(s) that 
preserve the tree, including utilizing zoning ordinance variances that would preserve the 
tree; 

• Documentation on the additional incremental construction cost attributable to an 
alternative that preserves the tree (i.e. construction cost of alternative design minus cost 
of original design) in relation to the appraised value of tree(s) as outlined in City 
administrative rules for appraising trees and based on the most recent addition to the 
Guide for Plant Appraisal. 

The following guidance will be used to determine feasibility: 

• If the incremental cost of the tree preservation alternative is more than 140% of the 
appraised value of the tree, the cost will be presumed to be financially infeasible. 

• If the incremental cost of the tree preservation alternative is less than 110% of the 
appraised value of the tree, the cost will be presumed to be financially feasible. 

• If the incremental cost of the tree preservation alternative is between 110% and 140% of 
the appraised value of the tree, public works director or their designee will consider a 
range of factors, including the value of the improvements, the value of the tree, the 
location of the tree, the viability of replacement mitigation and other site conditions. 

• In calculating the incremental cost of the tree preservation alternative, only construction 
costs will be evaluated. No design fees or other soft costs will be considered. 

Removal applications based on shading interference with proposed solar facilities shall 
employ the following screening criteria before applying the feasibility guidance above: 

• Can the proposed array be ground mounted or positioned elsewhere to avoid 
shading by tree 

• Can pruning resolve the conflict 
• Is the proposed array sized appropriately 
• Are there other energy efficiency measures that owner could employ to replace or 

reduce the need for the proposed solar array (energy efficiency analysis should be 
prepared by a certified energy auditor). 

Page 110



4 
 

D. The public works director or their designee may expedite dead (Criterion 1) or invasive tree 
(Criterion 4) permit processes and shall have authority to reasonably waive permit application 
requirements and fees for these types of removals. 

E. Permit applications (except Criteria 1 and 4) are required to be accompanied by a report 
prepared by an ISA certified arborist or member of the American Society of Consulting Arborists 
(ASCA) as approved at the discretion of public works director or their designee. 

F. The public works director or their designee may charge applicant for the reasonable costs of 
third party or staff reviews required under the Heritage Tree Ordinance. The public works 
director or their designee will establish an approved list of arborists to reduce conflicts between 
the city arborist and applicant’s arborist. 

VI. Appeals. 

A. The purpose of review period is to allow appeals to be processed in an appropriate, 
meaningful, and efficient manner to respect both permit applicant time and other city priorities. 
An appeal can only be based upon the criteria used in the application.  

B. Conflict Resolution. City can offer conflict resolution for community member appeals before/at 
the start of the formal appeal process. Adding mediation as part of an appeals process could 
help maintain, preserve, and build good community relations while resolving concerns and 
disagreements regarding heritage trees. In many circumstances, conflict resolution mediated by 
a third party will help to educate or provide a different perspective to potential appellants that 
might affect the appellant’s decision about filing an appeal.  

To implement this option, the City shall engage and pay for a mediator for the applicant and 
appellant. Note that participating in non-binding mediation does not preclude the appellant from 
subsequently filing an appeal.  

C. Upon request by either party, the City may extend the review period to allow for expert 
submissions not to exceed 60 days from appeal file date. 

VII. Establishment of heritage tree fund. 

A.  Funds are authorized to be used for site modifications and underlying treatments (such as, 
concrete excavation, installation of structural soils, pervious pavers, Silva Cells, and 
cantilevered sidewalks) to facilitate tree planting, limit infrastructure conflicts, and to promote 
healthy tree growth.  
 
VIII. Heritage tree replacements 

A. The overall goal of the Heritage Tree Ordinance’s replacement requirement is to ensure 
continued canopy cover is maintained or increased. Ideally, the replacement tree(s) should 
replace the removed canopy cover in a period of approximately 15 years. 

B. Appraised tree value will be required for all heritage tree removals (and street trees) for a 
development project. The public works director or their designee will establish an approved list 
of tree appraisers to reduce conflicts between the city arborist and applicant’s arborist.   

C. The appraisal shall use the most recent edition of the Guide to Plant Appraisal to determine 
the value of the tree being removed and the replacement trees. An alternate industry tree 
appraising standard may be used upon approval by the public works director or their designee. 

Page 111







   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

2 

 

 

In addition to hosting an app challenge, staff also assessed using volunteer 
community member tree inspectors and existing software solutions described below.  
 
Volunteer community member tree inspectors 
The Heritage Tree Task Force suggested harnessing the community members 
interested in tree preservation as a resource. This option would require partnership 
with a local nonprofit such as Canopy, Grassroots Ecology, Friends of the Urban 
Forest or similar, to coordinate volunteer inspection of tree replacements. 
 
This will likely require an administrative contract with a third-party in addition to a 
minimum of 20 hours of staff time to setup the relationship and under 5 hours monthly 
of the City Arborist’s time to sustain the relationship. This option will cost the City 
approximately $30,000 annually to sustain, which is approximately two-thirds the cost 
of city staff conducting the inspections. 
 
There is a risk this option may result in the delay of tree replacement inspection as 
availability of volunteers may vary. This may delay issuance of final occupancy or 
completion of development projects. The recruitment and training of volunteers may 
also delay the implementation rollout which currently targeted for July 1, 2020. Also, 
the ongoing success of this program is dependent on the continued recruitment 
and/or retention of volunteer tree inspectors. 
 
Additionally, tree replacements may be planted in restricted areas, such as fenced 
backyards or gated properties. Community member volunteers will be required to take 
on personal risk by entering onto private properties. This may put community 
members or private property owners in a litigious position. 
 
There is also a risk no third-party partner is available to administrate this tree 
inspection program. The City Council may also want to explore the establishment of a 
city run volunteer program. However, this option would require further exploration of 
budget requirement (e.g. staff time, insurance, etc.) and legal risks (e.g. liability of 
volunteer community members on private property).  
  
Available software solutions 
Tree inventory management software is available for City use. Tree specific software 
applications, like Tree Plotter, are geographic information systems that allow users to 
input tree information from a mobile device (e.g. smartphone, tablet computer, etc.). 
Conceivably, permit applicants could input replacement tree data directly into this 
software. The predicted cost of this software application is up to $3,000 per year. 

The City also currently has a 5-year term contract with Accela permitting system 
which has asset management features. The City is in the process of implementing the 
Accela software and is expected to be completed by Winter 2019. After the initial 
rollout, expanded functionality such as the input of tree replacement evidence by 
community members will be explored further.  

The risk associated with the software option is allowing multiple users to input publicly 
available information. City staff time would be required to verify information to ensure 
accurate reporting periodically. While it may reduce staff time in the continued 

Page 114



   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

3 

 

 

administration of the updated heritage tree ordinance, initial set up and community 
member training on this software may increase staff time needs in short term. 

Recommendation  
 
Based on the analysis, staff recommends exploring the following options over the 
next six months to meet the July 1, 2020 ordinance effective date: 

1. Leveraging and exploring the use of the City’s new Accela permitting system 
that may have features that could support photographic verification of tree 
replacements.  The new permit system is expected to be deployed in the next 
few months, and the changes to the ordinance will be implemented on July 1, 
2020, providing enough time to implement this option. 
 

2. If the Accela permitting system cannot support tree replacement verification, 
staff recommends exploring existing tree tracking software, such as Tree 
Plotter, where the permit applicant would be required to log and provide 
photographic evidence of tree replacements. Both Accela and other tree 
tracking systems have the ability to be accessed by the public.  

 
3. Working with a nonprofit to use community member volunteers to preform tree 

replacement verifications and help educate residents about keeping trees 
healthy. 

 
 

Page 115



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 116





Through January 14, 2020

Tentative City Council Agenda
# Title Department Item type
1 Adopt a resolution approving the City Council Subcommittee recommendations regarding the 2019-20 community funding allocation ASD Regular

2 Amend the 2019-20 adopted budget ASD Regular

3 Finance and Audit Committee update ASD Committee Report

4 Receive the comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 ASD Regular

5 CitizenM Hotel - CDP Amendment CDD Public Hearing

6 SB2 Planning Grant Authorization CDD Consent

7 Subdivision Ordinance front setback variance for 180 Elliot Drive CDD Regular

8 Amend master fee schedule:  Public Electric Vehicle  Charging Station Fee and Zero Waste Implementation Development Fee CMO Public Hearing

9 Approve response to Civil Grand Jury report: "Electric Vehicle Adoption in the Cities and County of San Mateo" CMO Consent

10 City Council agenda topics: December 2019 – February 2020 CMO Informational

11 City Council agenda topics: December 2019 – February 2020 CMO Informational

12 City Council agenda topics: January 2020 – March 2020 CMO Informational

13 City Council agenda topics: November 2019 to January 2020 CMO Informational

14 City Council appointments to regional boards, commissions and committees CMO Regular

15 Climate Action Plan Progress CMO Regular

16 Mayor's state of the city reception CMO Presentation

17 Minutes: 10/15 CMO Consent

18 Minutes: 10/29 CMO Consent

19 Minutes: 11/19 CMO Consent

20 Minutes: 11/5 CMO Consent

21 Minutes: 12/10 and 12/17 CMO Consent

22 Provide direction to the City’s voting delegate regarding regional vacancies for the City Selection Committee’s December meeting CMO Regular

23 Receive and file quarterly update on the 2019-20 City Council work plan CMO Consent

24 Recognition of the outgoing Mayor CMO Regular

25 Second Reading of Updates to the Heritage Tree Ord CMO Consent

26 Selection of the 2020 Mayor and Vice Mayor CMO Regular

27 Sister City Committee recommendation to upgrade Bizen, Japan to full Sister City status CMO Consent

ASD-Administrative Services 
CMO- City Manager's Office

CD-Community Development
CSD-Community Services

PD-Police 
PW-Public Works

ATTACHMENT A

Page 118



Through January 14, 2020

Tentative City Council Agenda
# Title Department Item type
28 Sister City Committee update CMO Committee Report

29 Update on zero waste plan progress CMO Regular

30 Study session on housing element, state housing laws, and the 2022 housing element update CMO, CDD Study Session

31 Provide direction on the formation of a Youth Advisory Committee (YAC) CSD Regular

32 Belle Haven branch library project - conceptual design alternatives and cost estimates LIB Study Session

33 Belle Haven branch library project LIB Informational

34 Library Commission update LIB Committee Report

35 Study Session on City Drone Program PD Study Session

36 Adopt resolution for parking restrictions on Santa Cruz between Johnson and Arbor PW Regular

37 Adopt resolution for parking time restrictions Alma St/Creek Dr PW Consent

38 Adopt Resolution No. XXX proposing to abandon public right-of-way along Woodland Avenue PW Consent

39 Authorize the City Manager to Enter into an Agreement with Roberts & Brune Company to Provide Water Parts and Supplies up to the Budgeted 
Amount Each Year and Authorize the Option to Renew the Contract Annually for up to Three Years PW Consent

40 Authorize the city manager to enter into funding agreements with C/CAG and Caltrans and authorize a design-build approach for the project (Have PW Consent

41 Award of a construction contract for the Oak Grove Ave Green Infrastructure & Sidewalk Project to XXX, in the amount of $XXX; approve a 
construction contingency in the amount of $XXX PW Consent

42 Monte Rosa water main bid award PW Consent

43 Second reading and adoption of transportation impact fee ordinance PW Consent

44 Second reading and adoption of transportation impact fee ordinance (placeholder if needed to reintroduce 11/19) PW Consent

45 TIA Guidelines PW Study Session

46 Update on new wireless facility regulations PW Informational

47 Willows turn restrictions PW Regular

48 Annexation procedure/policies/applications/West Menlo Triangle/Menlo Oaks annexation PW, CMO Informational

ASD-Administrative Services 
CMO- City Manager's Office

CD-Community Development
CSD-Community Services

PD-Police 
PW-Public Works

Page 119



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 120





Staff Report #: 19-224-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

share upfront. An alternative payment option was also approved which would allow a business to pay 
through installments over a two-year timeframe with the City contributing 70 percent for parallel parking and 
60 percent for angled parking. Both payment options carried a City maximum contribution of $30,000 for 
any one street cafe. The cost for any enhancements beyond the base design were to be borne solely by the 
business. 
 
Subsequently, final designs were developed, which accounted for site-specific conditions. The estimated 
construction costs had increased due to a general increase in the size of the café, safety features and 
disabled accessibility requirements. For the various designs, the costs for the street cafes ranged from 
$39,000 to $88,000. The increased costs also affected the feasibility of businesses to participate. 
Recognizing the value of the program, the cost-sharing approach was modified to increase the maximum 
City contribution amount. On May 24, 2016, the City Council approved the following: 
 
1. Increased the Downtown streetscape improvement budget for fiscal year 2016-17 based on the 

engineer’s estimate; 
2. Authorized the city manager to award construction contracts up to the budgeted amount; 
3. Authorized the city manager to enter into license and funding agreements with the business owners; 
4. Approved a 80-20 percentage cost split with the City contributing 80 percent and the business 20 

percent for the base design with a City maximum contribution of $45,000; and 
5. Directed staff to advance the project into construction. 
 
On September 13, 2016, the City Council authorized the city manager to eliminate the cap on the City’s 
contribution and increase the term of the agreements from three years to five years. Additionally, two 
options for repayment were established. Business owners could pay upfront and receive an 80-20 cost-
share with the City or over three years with a 75-25 split.  
 
Currently, the City has seven street cafés along Santa Cruz Avenue in the downtown area. The program 
has successfully enhanced downtown vibrancy and character while also improving the retention of 
downtown businesses, particularly restaurants.  

 
Analysis 
Following the latest round of street cafés completed in 2017, the City has not actively sought out suitable 
sites to expand the program. However, staff has received and followed up on a few inquiries for expanding 
the program. Among those inquiries, there are two locations that have expressed interest in moving forward: 
the Refuge at 1143 Crane Street and Coffeebar at 1149 Chestnut Street. The Refuge was first explored as 
a potential site for a street café in 2014 while Coffeebar expressed interest in the program in 2018. 
However, key vacancies with the City did not allow for execution on any additional street cafés until now. 
Additional street cafes would contribute to vibrancy and economic activity in Downtown Menlo Park. A street 
café at these locations would meet the original intent in regards to downtown vibrancy while also helping the 
City retain desirable and popular business establishments.  
 
The following sets out the relevant milestones and timeline that staff has estimated for the completion of the 
street café at these sites: 
• The City will contract with a designer to prepare construction-ready drawings and specifications for the 

project. The proposed street cafes would be the first on side streets, which may provide an opportunity to 
explore different designs. (Estimated completion: four to five months) 

• Staff will return to City Council to authorize the city manager to enter into a funding/licensing agreement 
with each business owner for the street cafe. (November-December 2019) 

Page 122



Staff Report #: 19-224-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

• Staff will present to the Complete Streets Commission for approval to remove the necessary parking 
spots to complete the cafes. It is anticipated that 2 parallel spaces at each location would require 
removal. (January – February 2020) 

• City issues a request for bids and City Council awards construction contracts. (Estimated completion: 
three-months) 

• Funding agreements are executed and street cafés are built. (Estimated completion: two to three 
months) 

• Total estimated time to completion nine to 11 months 
 
Staff proposes to take a similar approach in cost-sharing as with previous street café locations. While the 
exact costs will not be known until bids are accepted, early estimates put the business contributions 
somewhere between $15,000 and $18,000 each depending on the funding option the merchants chooses. 
They will have the option of paying up front with an 80-20 split with the City or paying over the course of 
three years with a 75-25 split. The business owners have indicated that this is an acceptable cost. At a total 
estimated cost of $150,000 for construction of the street cafés, this would leave the City’s obligation in the 
range of $112,500 to $120,000. 
 
The City will enter into a five-year agreement with each business. The funding/licensing agreements outline 
how the City would be reimbursed for its upfront construction costs as well as how the use of the street café 
would be licensed. Use of city utilities (such as electricity for lighting) would be granted based on a yearly 
fee paid by the business owner to cover costs. Maintenance of the street cafés would be the responsibility 
of the business owner. In the event of a change in ownership or un-renewed agreement, use and 
maintenance of the café would be returned to the City until a new agreement is completed. 
 
Staff will return before the end of the year to seek the authority to award a construction contract and the 
authority to enter into an agreement with the business owner. In the meantime, construction-ready and site-
specific designs will be developed for both sites in preparation for a request for bids. Staff is not aware of 
any other businesses interested in the program and will not actively pursue further street café sites unless 
given City Council direction to do so. 

 
Impact on City Resources 
Preparation of construction-ready and site-specific designs will cost approximately $20,000. Preparation 
and management of the project will require staff time and resources. Adequate funding is available in the 
Capital Improvement Program as part of the Downtown Streetscape Improvement project.  

 
Environmental Review 
This action is not a project within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines §§ 15378 and 15061(b)(3) as it will not result in any direct or indirect physical change in the 
environment. 

 
Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Page 123



Staff Report #: 19-224-CC 

 

   
 

 
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

Attachments 
None  
 
Report prepared by: 
John Passmann, Management Analyst II 
Christopher Lamm, Assistant Public Works Director 
 
Report reviewed by: 
Deanna Chow, Interim Community Development Director 

Page 124


